STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

COMMISSIONER TDD Access: Relay NH
Jared S. Chicoine 1.800-735-2964
Tel. (603) 271-3670
DEPUTY COMMISSIONER
Christopher J. Ellms, Jr. FAX No. 271-1526
Website:
DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY ww.energy.nh.gov

21 8. Fruit St, Suite 10
Cencord, N.H. 03301-2420

November 13, 2024

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the New Hampshire Department of Energy (Department) to enter into an amendment to an
existing SOLE SOURCE contract with Community Action Partnership of Strafford County, Dover,
NH, Vendor #177200, for the Senior Energy Assistance Services (SEAS) Program by increasing the
price limitation by $6,910 from $7,003 to $13,913 and by extending the completion date from
September 30, 2025 to September 30, 2027 effective upon Govenor and Executive Council approval.

This contract was originally approved by Governor and Executive Council on November 22, 2022
(Item #70). 100% Other Funds (Transfer from NH DHHS).

Funds are available in Fiscal Year (FY) 2025 and anticipated to be available in FY 2026 and 2027 in
the account Fuel Assistance upon the continued appropriation and availability of funds in the future
operating budget, with the authority to adjust encumbrances through the Budget Office if needed and
Jjustified.

FY 2025 FY 2026 FY 2027
02-52-52-520510-33540000-074-500587
Grants for Pub Assist & Relief $2.256 $3,724 $930

EXPLANATION

This amendment to a contract is SOLE SOURCE based on historical performance of the Community
Action Agencies (CAA)} in the New Hampshire Fuel Assistance Program (FAP), their outreach and
client service capabilities. The Department proposes to continue to subcontract with the five CAAs
who have successfully provided FAP services at the local level for more than three decades. The
CAAs work closely with Department’s FAP Administrator in the implementation of the program.



His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Novemnber 13, 2024
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“This Department contract provides the Community Action Agency with the program funds to support
the Senior Energy Assistance Services (SEAS) Program. The SEAS Program makes home energy
more affordable for households with members who are 60 years of age or older, who are experiencing
a home energy hardship, and who are not eligible for the state’s Fuel Assistance Program under the
current income limits. The CAAs determine eligibility for the Fuel Assistance Program and are able
to efficiently distribute these funds to households in need that are not eligible for the Fuel Assistance
Program.

A federal grant provided by the Administration for Community Living (Titte [IIB Supportive
Services) awarded to the New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services (NH DHHS)
Division of Elderly and Adult Services provides funding for the Senior Energy Assistance Services
Program A Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) for this program was originally approved by
Governor and Council on March 23, 2022, Item #25, and amended by the Governor and Executive

Council on September 25, 2024, [tem #34.

In the event that the Other Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be requested to
support this program.

Resmctfd!ly SUT itted,

Jared S. Chicoine
Commissioner




NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

SUBJECT: SENIOR ENERGY ASSISTANCE SERVICES CONTRACT
COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFORD COUNTY

" AMENDMENT #1

" This Amendment is between the State of New Hampshire Department of Energy, 21
South Fruit Street, Concord, Merrimack County, NH 03301 (hereinafter referred to as the
“State”) and Community Action Partnership of Strafford County, 577 Central Avenue, Suite 10,
Dover, Strafford County, NH 03820 (hercinafter the “Contractor™).

Pursuant to an Agreement (hereinafter referred to as the “Agreement”), as approved by
New Hampshire Governor and Executive Counci! on November 22, 2022, item #70, the
Contractor has agreed to provide certain Services, per the terms and conditions specified in the
Agreement and in consideration of payment by the State of certain surns as specified therein.

\ WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of Section 17 of the Agreement, the Agreement
may be modified or amended only by a written instrument executed by the parties thereto and .
only after approval of such modification or amendment by the New Hampshire Governor and
Executive Council; and '

. WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to amend the Agreement in certain
respects, : ' i

. " NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and of the covenants and
. conditions in the Agreement as set forth herein, the parties agree to the following:

)] Amendment and Modification of Agreement. The Agreement is amended and
. modified as follows:

A} - Completion Date: Amend Subparagraph 1.7 of the Agreement by striking -
the current completion date of September 30, 2025 and inserting in place
thereof the date of September 30, 2027. ;

"B) . Price Limitation: Amend Subparagraph 1.8 of the Agreement by striking
the current sum of $7,003 and inserting in place thereof the total sum of
$13,913. ' ¥ '

C)  Exhibit C - Payment Terms: Amend Exhibit C, first and second paragraph
by striking the current sum of $7,003 and inserting in place thereof the
total sum of $13,913, Amend Exhibit C, third paragraph, by striking the
current completion date of September 30, 2025 and inserting in place
thereof the date of September 30, 2027.

CAPSCSEAS23 ALN: 93.044 Date
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D)  Exhibit D; Amend perlod covered by this cemf ication 1o “September 21,
2022 to September 30 2027."

E) Exhibit E: Amend contract penod dates to “September 21, 2022 to
Scptcmbcr 30,2027.»

2) Continuance of Agreement. Except as specifically amended and modified by
the Terms and Conditions of this Amendment, obligations of the parties hereunder

shall remain in full force and effect in accordance with the terms and conditions
set forth in the Agreement as it existed immediately prior to this Amendment.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereunto set their hands as of the day and year
written below,

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
NH Department of Energy

pare: /0 /-“9% ;hﬁy: O D

d 8. Chicoine, Commissioner

Community Action Partnership of Strafford County

S 7/ S

Betsey Andrews Parker, Chief Executive Officer

TTORNEY GENERAL

Assistant Attorney General

~

Approved as to form, execution and substance:

- OFFICEO

10/15/2024 :
Date: By:

I hereby certify that the foregoing contract was approved by the Governor and Council of the
State of New Hampshire at their meeting on , 2024,

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

By:

Title:

CAPSCSEAS23 ALN: 93.044 Date
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State of New Hampshire
Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I. David M. Scanlan, Sccretary of State of the State of New Hampshire. do hereby certify that COMMUNITY ACTION
PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFORD COUNTY is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New
. Hampshire on May 25. 1965. | further cenify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State’s office have been

received and is in good standing as far as this office is concened.

Business ID: 65583
Centificate Number: 0006664113

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF.

I h;.relo set my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 10th day of April A.D. 2024.

" David M. Scanian

Secretary of State



CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

y — M 8 g
b Jewn Mreeof v hereby certify that:
1.1 am duly elected Treasurer of Community Action Partnership of Strafford County.

2. The tollowing s a true copy of a vote taken at a meating of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called, and
held on Novembor 15, 2023, at which a quorum of the Diractors/shareholders were present and vot:ng

VOTED: That Betsey Andrews Parker, CEO and Leslle Craigen, CFO are duly amhorized on behalf of Community

- Action Partnership of Strafford County to enter into contracts or agreements with the State of New Hampshire and:
‘any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all documents, agreementis and
other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thareto. which may in his/her judgment be
desirable or necessery {o atfect the purpose of this vote.

3. | heraby certity that sald vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendmaent to which this certificate s attached. This authority was valld thirty (30)
days prior to and remains valld for thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. | further certify
that It is understood that the State of New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidance that the person(s)
listed above currently occupy the position(s) Indica!ad and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To
-the extent that there are any limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with
the State of New Hampshire, all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Signature of ad Officer - 3

Dated: /0/, 4/ 204y | }-wf%/ Joit a-—‘a’é) ‘

Cat

Name: Jg‘;, A. /L{fc.c_a/o
ez -T-;eésaf </

Rev. 03/24/20



— :
ACORD' CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE oy

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder s an ADDﬁ10NAL INSURED, the policy{les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be sndorsed.
if SUBROGATION 1S WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policles may require sn sndorssment. A statement on
this cartificate doas not confer rights to the certificate holder In lleu of such endorsemants). ‘

PRODUCER ang"'  Ted Davis
CGl Insurance, Inc, - [PHONE {877) 562-8954 | t'ﬁ.mn (B86) 574-2443
5 Denmouth Drive . aboRess: 10avisfCGIBusinessinsurance.com
INSURER{S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC §
Aubum : NH 03032 INSURER A: Hanover Insurance Company 22292
NSURED NSURER B : E83tem Alllance 10724
Community Action Partnership of Strafford County ¢ Phitadelphia fndemnity j 23850
DBA: Strafford CAP WNSURER O : 7
577 Central St, Ste 10 FSUNEREL
Dover 03820 mn X
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER:  24-25 Master REVISION NUMBER: -

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT TME POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TOQ THE INSURED NAMED ABQVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REGUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,

EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS,

?I‘gl TYPE OF INSURANCE INSD | WyD POLICY HUMBER J&L&M m LMIrs
D] COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY : - EACH OCCURRENCE s 1.000,000
[ TKACE TO RERTED
| cLanes.unce occur PREMISES (€ s 100060
3| Abuse Lisbillty: $1M 1 MED EXP (Any one parson) s 10,000
Al : ZHVA192135 11 i 010172024 | 070172025 [ pgasonar aaov moury | 5 1000.000
GEWL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIEY PER: _ | QENERAL AGGREGATE s 3.000.000
pOLICY E] = Lo¢ : PRODUCTS . COMPOP AGG | 3 |Nchuded
oTHER; : Professional Lisbility s 1,000,000
AUTOMOBILE LLABRITY W‘ us? s 1,000,000
[ S anvavo BODILY SNJURY {Par parson} | §
[~"| owneD SCHEDWLED
A || "'"&F o] TGS AYWA158030 07/01/2024 | O7/01/2025 | BOOILY NJURY (Par sccident) | §
5 ATOS OnLY AUTDS OMLY . _ Mipiﬁim VBAEE 5 .
Uninsured matorist $ 1,000,000
[/ weareriatias | X occum p GENOCCURRBREE | 3 4000000
A EXCESS LIAD CLAIMS-MADE UHVA192136 ’ 070172024 | 07012025 | nonscare 4 4,000,000
| pep [ > rerenmon s © : $
WORKERS COMPENSATION Sthnyt '
AND EXPLOYERS LIABRITY YiN TSoaio00
B | Ormcermeuner exciuenr e N[ 01000011379-20244 0720172024 | 07/01/2025 | L EACH ACCIDENT £ ——
(Mandatory tn NH) EL. DISEASE - EAEMPLOYEE |3 1WOU,
¥ yus, deacribe under 1,000,000
SCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS batow EL OisEASE. pouCYLMT |3 1OUU,
regate $8,000.000
Dirsctors & Officers : Aoo !
¢ | EPLIwith Crime PHSD1807746-007 070172024 | 0710172025 |Per Claim $3,000,000
i . Crima Aggregats 31,000,000
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS ! VEHICLES [ACORD 181, Additions! R ks Scheduie, may be hed i mare space (s required)
Workers Compensation JA State: NH
_CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

SHOULO ANY OF THE ABOYE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

Stats af NH: NH Dapi of Energy ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

21 South Frult St, Ste 10
. ’ AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Concond NH 03301 4

1

] © 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
ACORD 23 (201603} The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



Financial Statements

COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSH

IP OF

STRAFFORD COUNTY AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022
AND

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’' REPORTS AND REPORTS ON
COMPLIANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL



CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

JABLE OF CONTENTS
Page(s)

Independent Auditors' Report 1-3
Financial Statements:

Consolidated Statements of Financial Position ) 4

Consolidated Statements of Activities _ 5-6

Consolidated Statements of Functional Expenses 7-8

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 9

Consolidated Notes to Financial Statements 10-23
Supplementary Information:

Consolidating Statement of Financial Position 24

Consalidating Statement of Activities 25

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 26 - 27

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 28
Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control Over Financial

Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an

Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with

Govemment Auditing Standards 29-30
Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance for Each Major

Program and on Internal Control Over Compliance Required by

the Uniform Guidance 31-33

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 34 -35



Leone
McDonnell
& Roberts

UEOEESSEORAL M= AT
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

" OVER » WOLFFBORO
NORTH CONWAY

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Community Action Partnership of Strafford County and Affiliate

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Community Action Partnership
of Strafford County (a New Hampshire nonprofit organization) and Affiliate, which comprise the
consolidated statements of financial position as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, and the related
consolidated statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended,
and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, based on our audits and the report of the other auditors, the consolidated financial
statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Community Action
Partnership of Strafford County and Affiliate as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, and the changes in its
net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

We did not audit the financial statements of Academy Street Family Housing, LLC a wholly owned
subsidiary, for the year ended December 31, 2023, which statements reflect total assets constituting
8.45 percent of consolidated total assets at December 31, 2023, and total revenues constituting 0.31
percent of consolidated total revenues for the year then ended. Those slatements were audited by
other auditors, whose report has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the

amounts included for Academy Street Family Housing, LLC, is based solely on the report of the other
auditors.

Basls for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of Community Action Partnership
of Strafford County and Affiliate and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the
- relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financia!
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America,
and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and

fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.



In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is required to evaluste whether there
are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Community
Action Partnership of Strafford County and Affiliate's ability to continue as a going concern within one
year after the date that the consolidated financial statements are available to be issued.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors'
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is
a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made
by a reasonable user based on the consalidated financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government
Auditing Standards, we: :

+ Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

» Obtain an understanding of intemai control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of Community Action Partnership of Strafford County and Affiliate's
intemnal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about Community Action Partnership of Strafford County and
Affiliate’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain intemal controi-related
matters that we identified during the audit.



Supplementary information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements
as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S.
Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a
required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additiona
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the consclidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of
fedaral awards is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the consolidated financial
statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 5,
2024, on our consideration of Community Action Partnership of Strafford County’s internal control over
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the
scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Community Action Partnership of Strafford
County's internal controt over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Community Action
Partnership of Strafford County’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

MA{’ /f/rﬁ/zmé// $ Qg\}lﬂ/é
‘}'2-4‘%!9 sionl (Fssociation

Dover, New Hampshire
June 5, 2024



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFORD COUNTY AND AFFILIATE
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

. ASSETS
2023 2022
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1806373 $ 1,355,108
Accounts receivable ‘ 1,875,336 2,555,852
Contributions raceivable 20,000 30,000
Due from Gafney Home, L.P. 519,850 -
Inventory 413,604 501,752
Prepaid expenses 11,972 52,046
Total current assets 4,647,175 4,495,758
NONCURRENT ASSETS
Restricted cash ' 36,215 29,455
Contributions receivable - 20,000
Security deposits 8,375 8,427
. Property, net of accumulated depreciation 6,374,340 5,804 619
Other noncurrent assets 25,503 25,503
Right of use asset 81,312 146,825
Total noncurrent assets , 6,525,745 65,034,829
TOTAL ASSETS $ 11,172,920 $ 10,530,587
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Current portion of long term debt $ 99,121 $ 95,690
Accounts payable . 1,295,505 445,958
Accrued payroll and related taxes 128,546 129,018
Accrued compensated absences 193,093 205,528
Refundable advances 849,145 1,581,774
QOther current liabilities 36,309 73,462
Current portion of right of use liability 36,264 65,513
Total current liabilities 2,637,983 2,596,943
NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Long term debt, less current portion shown above 3,057,976 2,908,484
Security deposits 2,853 3,201
Right of use liability, less current portion shown above 45,048 81.312
Total noncurrent liabilities 3,105,877 2,992,997
Total liabilities 5,743,860 5,589,940
NET ASSETS
Without donor restrictions 5,253,075 4,634,862
With donor restrictions 175,985 305,785
Total net assets 5,429,060 4,940,647
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 11,172,920 $ 10,530,587

See Notes to Financial Statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT
Grant revenue
Fees for service
Rent revenue
Public support
in-kind donalions
Interest
Fundraising
Other revenue
Loss on disposal of property

Total revenues and other support

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM
RESTRICTIONS

Total revenues, other support, and net
assets releasad from restrictions

EXPENSES
Program services
Child services
Community services
Energy assistance
Housing
Weatherization

Total program services
Supporting activities
Management and general

Fundraising

Total expenses

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS BEFORE ACQUISITION

OF PROPERTY AND LAND
ACQUISITION OF PROPERTY AND LAND
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

See Notes to Financial Statements

Without Donor With Donor
Restrictions Restrictions TJotal -
$ 16,787,565 $ - $ 16,787,565
3,030,181 - 3,030,181
65,397 - 65,397 -
329,618 31,514 361,132
767,224 . 767,224
1,089 - 1,089
227,539 - 227,539
31,951 - 31,951
(79,338) - (79,338)
21,161,226 31,514 21,192,740
161,314 {161,314) -
21,322,540 {129,800) 21,192,740
5,618,514 - 5,618,514
1,213,031 1,213,031
4,088,771 4,088,771
5.475,141 - 5475141
3,309,103 - 3,309,103
19,704,560 - 19,704,560
1,522,812 1,522,812
197,469 197,469
21,424 841 21,424,841
{102,301) {129,800) (232.101)
720,514 - 720,514
618,213 (129,800) 488,413
4,634 862 305.785 4,940,647
$ 5,253,075 $ 175,985 $ 5429060 -

5



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT
Grant revenue
Fees for service
Rent revenue
Public support
In-kind donations
Interest
Fundraising
Other revenue

Gain on disposal of property

Total revenues and other support

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM
RESTRICTIONS

Total revenues, other support, and net
assets reieased from restrictions

EXPENSES
Program services
Child services
Community services
Energy assistance
Housing
Waeatherization

Total program services
Supporting activities
Management and general
Fundraising
Total expenses
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

See Notes to Financial Statements

Without Donor With Donor

Restrictions Restrictions Total
$ 42,329,510 $ 7 $ 42,329,510
1,976,344 - 1,976,344
58,600 - 58,600
514,628 113,717 628,345
988,080 - 988,080
402 - 402
167,764 - 167,764
1.216 - 1,216
27,491 - 27,491
46,064,035 113,717 46,177,752
166,561 (166,561) -
46,230,596 {52,844) 46,177,752
5,120,775 - 5,120,775
2,123,402 - 2,123,402
4.158,324 - 4,158,324
31,536,296 - 31,536,296
1,791,979 1,791,979
44 730,776 - 44 730,776
1,179,649 - 1,179,649
219,246 = 219,246
46,129,671 46,129,671
100,925 (52,844) 48,081
4,533,937 358,629 4,892 566
$ 4,634,862 $ 305,785 $ 4940647




COMSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

Intarmediat M A
Child Community Energy Tots! Program {Allocation) and
Services Services Asgistence Housing Waesthartzation Services Pools Gengra] Fundraksing Totsl
Payroll $ 3.582846 $ 276618 $ 503425 $ 628,100 $ 202327 3 S5.191.06 $ 24927 $  B54,406 3 79.711 $ 6,150,380
Payroll taxes 293,123 22.014 41 585 51,302 17.595 426,819 2305 40,988 §,452 476,384
Fringa benefits 233618 18,544 42488 49,182 23,018 386,828 - 63,285 5,369 435,452
Retinemeni 16,321 1,769 2.362 5463 1,037 27,782 274 4,914 291 320
Wealherization material, fuel
snd clienl assistance 29,635 32,082 3412724 4,394 593 ‘2977538 10,847 822 - - - 10.847 822
In-kind expenses 167,453 565,933 - 19,827 500 753713 - - 13,51 767,224
Consultants and contract labor 50,296 8383 151 41,791 36 106,959 77,946 167,622 19,414 374,941
Consumeble supplies 223,160 154,240 5,563 9.6 4738 427 322 51,854 18,436 4075 502,287
Qecupancy 700,084 46,498 55,377 130,160 21,160 954,159 (521.635) 84,2680 11,291 428,075
Repalrs and maintensnee 52,295 9,782 5971 17,494 1133 88675 400,030 5,810 1675 494,150
Insurance 33,359 3,258 1,325 8,559 955 47454 15170 56,416 185 119,225
. Training and conferences 88,945 12,467 5.012 21,405 19,154 145,023 a2 86,709 41212 253,006
Deprorntion 75.962 42,021 k1) 1528 4328 161.230 - 87.399 . 248,629
Travel and \ransportation 44,974 4,203 224 16,382 T 6,491 72.274 (12,307) 6,983 854 57.844
Printing and poslage 1.074 3,098 2,051 €0 19 6,302 - 6.091 10,295 22,688
Equipment and computer 6.952 728 - 2525 8628 16833 16,357 3458 &0 36,708
Interes! expenss 17,629 6,619 8,144 11,149 3,258 47,997 2,034 42,183 1.280 54 274
Othver program support 12,096 5578 - - . 18,472 42,383 13,902 954 75.711
Total expenses $ 5818514 $ 1,213.03 $ 4088771 $ 5475141 $ 3,309.103 $ 19,704,560 $ o $ 1522812 $ 197 469 $ 21424 841

Sea Notss to Flnandal Statements
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Payroll

Payroll taxes

Frinpe benefils

Reatirement

Waeatherization materia, fuel
and cllent pssistance

In-lond expenses

Consultants and contract labor

Consumabile supplies

Occupancy

Rapairs and maintenance

tnsurance

Training and conlerences

Depreciation

Travel and ransponation

Printing anxt postage

Equipment and compuler

Interest expense

Indirect

Other program support

Total expenses

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

Intermadiate Managemant
Child Communlty Enargy Total Program {Allocation) and
Services Services Asslsiance Housing Weatherization Services Pools Geners) Fundralsing Total
$ 2,951,265 $ Ba4216 $ 388,986 $ 920193 H 164,650 $ 5,070,010 $ 73,087 5 681722 $ 121,545 $ 5548344
247,208 57,089 32,974 -75,584 12,672 425507 6311 63,162 9,833 504,813
205,921 34,528 30,388 72,552 19,799 362,166 82 37.953 5220 406,421
14,995 2,162 1,569 6,445 761 25932 152 5,787 75 32,526
119,381 20.588 3.605.402 29,909,257 1,514,688 35.170,815 .- - - 35,170,816
14,772 968,268 - - - 983040 - . 5,040 948,080
166,629 14,565 2.692 212430 1,597 398,114 99,599 139,998 12,755 650.468
206,399 205,366 9.582 35.892 §,549 465,788 42,120 18,081 3,958 529,957
704 BBE 70467 41,243 141,580 18,043 978,219 {670.658) 69,769 8.201 381,521
39.766 23,938 7.541 10,406 2,763 84414 440,423 560 2,194 527,691
71,687 11,150 1.610 22,841 243 109,699 25811 52,785 259 188,554
80,248 5,551 2,528 7,834 17,205 113,362 19 26.440 41,454 181375
80,133 34,099 mn 34641 4328 153,592 - 85443 - 235,035
42,327 4,808 89 11,836 8.722 85,782 (12,356) 4,699 7689 58,6894
3723 55 10,850 348 95 15,072 - 11,043 5,576 31,691
- - 6,588 24 285 10,544 41,417 29,326 - 1,310 72,053
- 10,658 10,141 12,037 3,070 35,906 5,982 81815 1,438 125,141
105,441 - - - - 105,441 - {105,441) - -
65.716 15314 4774 38,134 3,761 127,699 [40,568) 5743 1,619 94,493
$ 5120775 $ 2.123.402 $ 4158324 $ 31,538,206 $ 1791979 $ 44,730,776 H - $ 1,179,649 $ 219246 $ 46,120671

Sees Notes to Financizl Stztements



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFORD COUNTY AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

E ECEM

CASH FLOWS FRCM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change in net assels
Adjustment to reconcile change in nel assets 1o
nel cash provided by operating activities:
Depraciation
Amortization of debt issuance costs
Acquisition of property and land
Acquisition of long term debt
Transier of property to Gafney Home, L P.
Loss (gain) on disposal of property
Decreasa (increase) in assats:
Accounts receivable
Contributions receivable
Due from Gafney Home, LP,
Inventory
Prepaid axpenses
Other noncurrent assets
Security deposits
Increase (decrease) in liabiities:
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and related taxes
Accrued compensated absences
Refundable advances
Other current lizbilitles
Securily deposits

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property
Proceeds on sale of property

NET CASH PROVIDED 8Y (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Paymenis made on long lerm debt

NET CASH USED IN l-:INANClNG ACTIVITIES
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
~ CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH, BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH, END OF YEAR
CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH

Cash

Rastricted cash:
Insurance escrow
Tax escrow
Replacement reserves
Operating reserve

Total cash and restricted cash

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Cash paid during the yoer for intarest

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NONCASH INVESTING AND
AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Acquired property and land
Acquired long term debt
See Notas to Financial Statements
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2023 2022
$ 488413 § 48,081
248629 239,035
3376 3376
{945.514) .
225,000 -
129,397 .
79,338 (27.491)
681,518 (426,641)
30.000 (37,400)
(519,890) -
88,148 2,780
40,074 (15,380)
) 1,334
52 42
849,547 (475.081)
(472) (7.229)
(12.435) 60,264
(732.629) 630.909
(37.153) 73.482
(348) -
615,049 77,001
(100.584) (506.141)
19,023 600,000
(81,571} 93,859
{75.453) (355,915)
{75.453) (355.915)
458,025 {184,965)
1,384,563 1,569,528
$ 1842588 3 1384563
$ 1806373 § 1355108
13477 9,193
5931 5.952
6,580 4,363
10,227 5,047
§ 1842588 1,384,563
$ 90,898 3 121765

3 945,514 $

$ 225000 § 5



NOTE 1.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Organization and Principles of Consolidation

Community Action Partnership of Strafford County (the Agency) is a 501(c)(3)
private New Hampshire non-profit organization established under the provisions
of the Equal Opportunity Act of 1964. Without services provided by the Agency,
many local residents would be without a means to provide for their basic needs,
including food, education, child care, utilities assistance, transportation, housing,
emergency shelter and access to other services. The mission of the Agency is to
educate, advocate and assist people in Strafford County to help meet their basic
needs and promote self-sufficiency. The vision of the Agency is to eliminate
poverty in Strafford County through compassion, education, self-sufficiency,
transparency, accountability, team work, client focus and professionalism.

Academy Street Family Housing, LLC (Academy Street) is a limited liability
company which is consolidated because the Agency is the sole member of
Academy Street. All significant intercompany items and transactions have been
eliminated from the consolidated financial statements.

In addition to the Agency's administrative office located in Dover, the Agency
maintains its outreach capacity by operating program offices in Farmington,
Milton, Rochester, Dover and Somersworth. The Agency is funded by Federal,
state, county and local funds, as well as United Way grants, public utilities,
foundation and charitable grant funds, fees for service, private business
donations, and donations from individuals. The Agency is governed by a tripartite
board of directors made up of elected officials, community leaders from for-profit
and non-profit organizations and residents who are low income. The board is
responsible for assuring that the Agency continues to assess and respond to the
causes and conditions of poverty in its community, achieve anticipated family and
community outcomes, and remain administratively and fiscally sound. The
Agency administers a wide range of coordinated programs to more than 15,000
people annually, and the programs are designed to have a measurable impact on
poverty and health status among the most vulnerable residents: those under the
age of 6, the elderly and those living in poverty. This coordinated approach is
accomplished by providing a broad array of services that are locally defined,
planned and managed with community agencies.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

Basis of Accounting
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared using the accrual

basis of accounting in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
(GAAP) of the United States.

Financial Statement Presentation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (US GAAP), which require the
Agency to report information regarding its financial position and activities
according to the following net asset classifications:

Net assets without donor restrictions: Net assets that are not subject to
donor-imposed restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in
performing the primary objectives of the Agency. These net assets may be
used at the discretion of the Agency’s management and board of
directors. :

Net assets with donor restrictions: Net assets subject to stipulations
imposed by donors and grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary
in nature; those restrictions will be met by actions of the Agency or by
passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in nature, whereby
the donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity.

Donor restricted contributions are reported as increases in net assets with
donor restrictions. When restriction expires, net assets are reclassified
from net assets with donor restrictions to net assets without donor
restrictions in the statement of activities.

At December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Agency had net assets without donor and
with donor restrictions.

Refundable Advances
Grants received in advance are recorded as refundable advances and

recognized as revenue in the period in which the related services are performed
or expenditures are incurred..
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COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFORD COUNTY
AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

Contributions

~ All contributions are considered to be available for unrestricted use unless
specifically restricted by the donor. Amounts received that are restricted by the
donor for future periods or for specific purposes are reported as temporarily
restricted or permanently restricted support, depending on the nature of the
restriction. However, if a restriction is fulfilled in the same period in which the
contribution is received, the Agency reports the support as unrestricted.

Contributed Services '
Donated services are recognized as contributions in accordance with FASB ASC
No. 958, Accounting for Contributions Received and Contributions Made, if the
services (a) create or enhance non-financial assets or (b) require specialized
skills and would otherwise be purchased by the Agency.

Volunteers provided various services throughout the year that are not recogniied

as contributions in the financial statements since the recognition criteria under
FASB ASC No. 958 were not met.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments
Unless otherwise indicated, fair values of all reported assets and liabilities that
are financial instruments approximate the carrying values of such amounts.

Inventory

inventory materials are fixtures for installation and recorded at cost or net
réalizable value or if donated, at approximate fair value at date of donation, using
the first-in, first-out method.

Property and Depreciation

Property and equipment, which have a cost greater than $5,000, are capitalized
at cost or, if donated, at the approximate fair value at the date of donation.
Specific grants and awards may have a threshold lower than this amount and
that program will abide by those guidelines. Assets are depreciated over their
estimated useful lives using the straight-line method as follows:

Buildings and improvements 15 - 40 years
Furniture, equipment and machinery 3 - 10 years
Vehicles 5. 7 years

Depreciation expense aggregated $248,629 and $239,035 for the years ended
December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

Accrued Earned Time

The Agency has accrued a liability of $193,093 and $205,528 at December 31,
2023 and 2022, respectively, for future compensated leave time that its
employees have eamed and which is vested with the employee.

12



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

Income Taxes
The Agency is exempt from income taxes under-Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code. The Internal Revenue Service has determined the Agency to be

other than a private foundation. The Agency is also exempt from the New
Hampshire Business Enterprise Tax.

Accounting Standard Codification No. 740, “Accounting for Income Taxes”
establishes the minimum threshold for recognizing, and a system for measuring,
the benefits of tax return positions in financial statements. Management has
analyzed the Agency's tax position taken on its information retumns for the
previous three tax years and has concluded that no additional provision for
income taxes is necessary in the Agency's financial statements.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
The Agency considers all highly liquid financial instruments with original
maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Revenue Recognition Policy

The Agency derives revenue from grants, fees for services, donations, public
support, and fundraising. Revenues are recognized when control of these
services are transferred to customers, in an amount that reflects the
consideration the ‘Agency expects to be entitled to in exchange for those
services. Cost incurred 1o obtain a contract will be expensed as incurred when
the amortization period is less than a year. '

Academy Street derives revenue from the rental of apartment units. Revenues
are recognized as income, monthly, when rents become due and control of the
apartment units is transferred to the lessees. Control of the leased units is
transferred to the lessee in an exchange for the leased units. The cost incurred to
obtain a lease will be expensed as incurred.

Use of Estimates

The presentation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Advertising Expenses

The Agency expenses advertising costs as they are incutred. Total advertising
costs for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 amounted to $10,426
and $72,759, respectively.

13



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

Debt Issuance Costs

As required under FASB Accounting Standards Update No. 2015-03
amortization expense for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022
amounted to $3,376 and has been included with interest expense in the
consolidated statement of activities for each year. The unamortized deferred

financing costs have been included as a reduction of the long term debt (see
Note 10).

Inkind Donations

The Agency pays below-market rent for the use of centain facilities. In
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, the difference
between amounts paid for the use of the facilities and the fair value of the rental
space has been recorded as an in-kind donation and as an in-kind expense in
the accompanying consolidated financial statements. The estimated fair value of -
the donation was determined to be $103,356 and $14,772 for the years ended
December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

The Agency also receives contributed food commodities and other goods that are
required to be recorded in accordance with FASB ASC No. 958. The estimated
fair value of these food commodities and goods was determined to be $457,049
and $116,368, respectively, for the year ended December 31, 2023. For the year
ended December 31, 2022, the estimated fair value of these food commodities
and goods was determined to be $968,268 and $5,040, respectively.

The Agency also receives contributed professional services and volunteer time
that are required to be recorded in accordance with FASB ASC No. 958. The
estimated fair value of these services was determined to be $90,451 for the year
ended December 31, 2023. There were no contributed professional services for
the year ended December 31, 2022.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other aclivities have been
summarized on a functional basis. Accordingly, costs have been allocated among
the program services and supporting activities benefited. Occupancy costs have
been grouped and allocated to the programs as a line item. Such allocations have
been determined by management on an equitable basis.

The expenses that are allocated include the following:

Expense Method of allocation
Salaries and benefits Time and effort
Occupancy Square footage/revenues
Depreciation Square footage

All other expenses Approved indirect rate

14



NOTE 2.

NOTE 3.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

New Accounting Pronouncement

‘At the beginning of 2023, the Organization adopted FASB ASU 2016-13,

Financial Instruments—Credit Losses {Topic 326): Measurement of Credit Losses
on Financial Instruments, as amended, which modifies the measurement of
expected credit losses on certain financial instruments. The Agency adopted this
new guidance utilizing the modified retrospective transition method. The adoption
of this Standard did not have a material impact on the Agency's financial
statements.

PROPERTY
As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, property consisted of the following:
2023 2022
Land, buildings and improvements $6,900857 $6,181,672
Furniture, equipment and machinery - 418,949 398,645
Vehicles 315,682 350,136
Total 7,635488 - 6,930,453
Less accumulated depreciation 1,261,148 1,125,834
Net property $6374.340 §£5.804.619

RESTRICTED CASH BALANCES

Certain cash accounts have been established and are being funded in accordance
with a regulatory agreement entered into between Academy Street and New
Hampshire Housing as discussed below. All reserves are required to be held in
qualified New Hampshire financial institutions that are insured by the FDIC.

Operating Reserve

Under the regulatory agreement, Academy Streetl is required to establish an
operating reserve. The operating reserve was funded properly during the years
ended December 31, 2023 and 2022,

Replacement Reserve

Under the regulatory agreement, Academy Street is required to set aside amounts
for the replacement of property and other expenditures approved by New
Hampshire Housing. Additionally, Academy Street is required to make monthly
payments to the reserve. The reserve was properly funded during 2023 and 2022.

15



NOTE 4.

NOTE 5.

COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFORD COUNTY
AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

Insurance and Real Estate Tax Escrows

Academy Street is required to establish a reserve to fund tax and insurance
payments in the project. Amounts are to be deposited on a monthly basis to accrue
a sufficient balance to pay future tax and insurance bills of the project. As of
December 31, 2023 and 2022, the balance in the reserves for tax and insurance
escrows was properly funded.

LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY

The following represents the Agency's financial assets as of December 31, 2023
and 2022:

2023 2022
Financial assets at year end: : '
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,806,373 $ 1,355,108
Accounts receivable 1,875,336 2,556,852
Contributions receivable 20,000 50,000
Due from Gafney Home, L.P. 519,890 -
Restricted cash 36,215 29,455
Total financial assets : 4,254,814 3,991,415
Less amounts not available to be used
within one year:
Restricted cash 36,215 298,455
Board designated funds - 307,315

Financial assets available to meet general

expenditures over the next twelve months £4221599 § 3.654,645

The Agency's goal is generally to maintain financial assets to meet 30 days of
operating expenses. As part of its liquidity plan, excess cash is invested in short-
term investments, including money market accounts.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect
from balances outstanding at year end. Balances that are stiil outstanding after
management has used reasonable collection efforts are written off through a
charge to the valuation allowance and a credit to accounts receivable. The
Agency uses historical loss information based on the aging of receivables as the
basis to determine expected credit losses for receivables and believes that the
composition of receivables at year-end is consistent with historical conditions.
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NOTE 6.

NOTE 7.

NOTE 8.

NOTE 9.

COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFORD COUNTY
AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

The allowance for uncollectible accounts was estimated to be zero at December

31, 2023 and 2022. The Agency has no policy for charging interest on overdue
accounts.

CONTRIBUTIONS RECEIVABLE :

Contributions receivable represent promises to give, which have been made by
donors but have not yet been received by the Agency. The Agency considers
contributions receivable to be fully collectible; accordingly, no allowance for
contributions receivable has been recorded.

Total unconditional promises 1o give were as follows at December 31, 2023 and
2022:

2023 2022
Within one year $ 20000 $ 30,000
In two to five years - 20,000

220000 § 50000

DUE FROM GAFNEY HOME, L.P.

Gafney Home, L.P. (Gafney) is a low-income housing tax credit property. The
general partner (0.01%) of Gafney is 100% owned by the Agency. The $519,890
included in due from Gafney Home, L.P. on the consoclidated statement of
financial position for the year ended December 31, 2023 represents amounts that
the Agency has paid on behalf of Gafney for the construction that is underway.

PLEDGED ASSETS
As described in Note 9, all assets of the Agency are pledged as collateral under
the Agency's demand note payable agreement. As described in Note 10, the

building of the Agency is pledged as collateral under the Agency's mortgage note
payable agreement.

DEMAND NOTE PAYABLE

The Agency has available a revolving line of credit with a bank in the amount of
$750,000. Prior to November 2023, $250,000 was the amount available on the
revolving line of credit. The note is payable upon demand. Interest is stated at
the prime rate plus 1% which resulted in an interest rate of 9.50% at December
31, 2023 and 8.50% at December 31, 2022. The note is collateralized by all the
assets of the Agency. There was no outstanding balance on the demand note
payable as of December 31, 2023 and 2022.

17



NOTE 10.

SOMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFORD COUNTY

AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

S e ek A LA L i L e Ll L L]

LONG TERM DEBT

The long term debt at December 31, 2023 and 2022 consisted of the following:

Mortgage payable to Kennebunk Savings Bank
which had interest only payments for 36 months
followed by principal and interest payments for
264 months. During the year ended December 31,
2022 the note was refinanced to a fixed interest
rate of 4.25% for the first ten years resulting in
monthly principal and interest payments of
$11,170. On April 26, 2032, and on that date every
year thereafter, principal and interest payments
will adjust to 1.50% above the highest U.S Prime
Rate as published in the Wall Street Journat on
the applicable change date, with a floor rate of 4%.
The note matures in 2043. The mortgage payable
is secured by real estate.

5.00% notes payable to the New Hampshire
Community Loan Fund with monthly principal and
interest payments of $3,251, maturing October
2037. The notes are secured by real estate.

Note payable to New Hampshire Housing Finance
Authonty. The note is not subject to interest or
principal amortization and will be forgiven in 2028
provided that the property is used for transitional
housing. The note is secured by real estate.

Non-interest bearing note payable to New
Hampshire Housing deferred until April 21, 2060
or until the project is sold, refinanced or surplus
cash is available. The note is secured by real
estate.

18
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$ 1,790,164

387,745

225,000

785,889

2022

$ 1,846,509

406,854

785,889



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFORD COUNTY

AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022 -

202 2022

Non-interest bearing note payable to New
Hampshire Housing deferred until July 1, 2051 or
until the project is sold, refinanced or surplus cash
is available. The note is secured by real estate. 25,755 25,755
Total long term debt before current portion of long

term debt and unamortized debt issuance costs 3,214,553 3,065,007
Current portion of long term debt (99,121) (95,690)
Unamortized debt issuance costs {57.457) (60,833)

Total long term debt $3.007970 - $2908484

. The schedule of maturities of long term debt at December 31, 2023 is as foliows:

Year Ended
December 31 Amount
2024 $ 99,121
2025 ' 82,809
2026 86,562
2027 90,488
2028 319,591
Thereafter 2,535,982
Total $3.214.553

NOTE 11. NET ASSETS
At December 31, 2023 and 2022, net assets with donor restrictions consisted of

the following:
2023 2022
Whole family $ 39286 % 42,755
CQOVID related - 120,546
Fuel assistance 136,699 142,484
Total $ 175985 $ 305785
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NOTE 12.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

e — L ASE LIl Eahl & LT}

At December 31, 2023 and 2022, net assets without donor restrictions consisted
of the following:

2023 2022
Undesignated $5253075 $4,327,547
Board designated - 307,315

Total net assets without donor restrictions $5253075 $£4.634.862

OPERATING LEASES

Facilities occupied by the Agency for its community service programs are rented
under the terms of various leases with expiration dates through 2032. For the
years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, the annual lease/rent expense for
the leased facilities was $69,901 and $90,501, respectively.

The Agency accounts for its operating leases under ASU 2016-02, Leases (Topic
842). As such, the right of use (ROU) assets represent the Agency's right to use
underlying assets for the lease term, and the lease liabilities represent the
Agency’s obligation to make lease payments arising from these leases. The ROU
assels and lease liabilities, all of which arise from operating leases, were .
calculated based on the present value of future lease payments over the lease
terms. The discount rate related to the Agency's lease liability as of December
31, 2023 was 3.75%, which is based upon the risk-free borrowing rates
commensurate with the lease terms. At December 31, 2023, the ROU asset and

lease liability is $81,312. At December 31, 2022, the ROU asset and lease
liability is $146,825.

The weighted average lease term at December 31, 2023 is 5.44 years. The
weighted average discount rate at December 31, 2023 is 3.75%.

Common expenses, classified as occupancy costs in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements, are considered a non-lease component under
FASB ASC 842 and are recognized as costs as incurred.

Academy Street leases property from the Agency under a lease agreement for
an annual rent amount of $1. The lease expires during April 2045. Unless either
party serves the other with a 180 day written notice prior to the expiration of the
initial term, at the end of the initial term, the lease shall be automatically
extended for an additional 25 year term.
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NOTE 13.

NOTE 14,

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022
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Lease liability maturities as of December 31, 2023 is as follows:

Year Ending

December 31 Amount

2024 $ 38401

2025 6,901

2026 6,901

2027 6,901

2028 6,901

Thereafter 24,144

Total undiscounted lease liability . 80,149
Less imputed interest (8,837)

Total lease liability $ 81312

RETIREMENT PLAN

The Agency maintains a 403(b) Plan and Trust (the Plan) covering substantially
all employees. Employee contributions to the Ptan are made at predetermined
rates elected by employees. Additionally, the Agency provides a matching
contribution equal to 25% of the employee's contribution up to 5% of the
employee’s compensation. Effective April 1, 2016, the Agency instituted an auto
enrollment feature mandating a minimum 1% employee contribution; however,
employees reserve the right to decline the auto enroliment. Employer matching

contributions for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 totaled $33,241
and $32,526, respectively.

CONCENTRATION OF RISK

The Agency receives a majority of its support from federal and state
governments. For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, approximately
89% and 96%, respectively, of the Agency's total revenue was received from
federal and state governments. If a significant reduction in the level of support
were to occur, it would have a significant effect on the Agency’s programs and

_activities.
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NOTE 15.

NOTE 16.

NOTE 17.

NOTE 18.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

The Agency maintains its cash balances at several financial institutions in New
Hampshire. The balances are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation up to $250,000. The Agency maintains an agreement with its
primary financial institution to collateralize the balances in excess of $250,000.

CONTINGENCIES

The Agency receives grant funding from various sources. Under the terms of
these agreements, the Agency is required to use the funds within a certain period
and for purposes specified by the governing laws and regulations. If expenditures
were found not to have been made in compliance with the laws and regulations,
the Agency might be required to repay the funds. No provisions have been made
for this contingency because specific amounts, if any, have not been determined
or assessed as of December 31, 2023 and 2022.

RENTAL INCOME RECEIVABLE

During the year ended December 31, 2023, and subsequent to year end,
Academy Street entered into four separate rental agreements for use of their four
apaniments. The rental agreements have differing expirations ranging from April
2024 through April 2025.. Monthly payments for the agreements ranged from
$1,168 to $1,394 and are due the first day of each month. At December 31, 2023
and 2022, $2,587 and $1,412, respectively, is outstanding from tenants for rent
and is included in accounts receivable in the accompanying consolidated
statements of financial position. i

The approximate future rental payments owed on the above leases are as
follows: !

Year Ended

December 31 Amount
2024 $ 51,598
2025 15,824
Total $__ 67422

ACQUISITION OF PROPERTY AND LAND

During the year ended December 31, 2023, the Agency acquired property and land
relating to a transitional housing program from another nonprofit organization. The
value of the building and land received in the acquisition totaled $675,570 and
$269,944, respectively. '
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NOTE 19.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022
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As part of the acquisition of the property and land, the Agency also acquired the
related note payable of $225,000, payable to New Hampshire Housing Finance
Authority (see Note 10). The Agency has been running the operations of the
transitional housing program since the acquisition.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the statement of
financial position date, but before financial statements are available to be issued.
Recognized subsequent events are events or transactions that provide additional
evidence about conditions that existed at the statement of financial position date,
including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing financia! statements.
Nonrecognized subsequent events are events that provide evidence about
conditions that did not exist at the statement of financial position date but arose
after that date. Management has evaluated subsequent events through June 5,
2024, the date the consolidated financial statements were available for issuance.

Subsequent to year end, on May 1, 2024, the Agency acquired the Home for
Now Shelter, which is a homeless center in Strafford County, from another
nonprofit organization. The value of the property acquired totaled $1,502,600.
The Agency will acquire all other remaining assets from the nonprofit
organization once their dissolution is finalized.
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COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFORD GOUNTY AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable
Contributions receivable
Dus from affiliate
Due from Gafney Home, L.P.

laventory
Prepaid expenses

Total current assels

NONCURRENT ASSETS
Restricted cash
Security deposils
Property, net of accurmatated depreciation
Other noncurrent assals
Right of use asset

Tolal noncurrent assels

TOTAL ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Cumreni portion of long term dabt
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and relatad laxes
Accrued compensated absences
Due 1o affiliate
Refundable advances
Other cumrent labilities
Cutrent portion of right of use liability

Total cument liabilities
NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Long term debt. less cutrent portion shown abhove
Security deposils
Right of use liability, less currant portion shown above
Total noncurrent liabilities
Tolal liabililies
NET ASSETS
Without donor restrictions
With donor reslrictions
Total net assels

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

EMBE

Community
Action
Partnership

of Strafford Street Family

023

Academy

Consolidating

County Housing, LLC Totat diustments Consolldated
SETS
$ 1742370 $ 64003 $ 1806373 § - $ 1806373
1,872,749 2.587 1,875,336 ; 1,875,136
20,000 ! 20,000 ; 20,000
5,065 : 5,065 (5.065) 1
519,890 . 519,830 - 519,690
413,604 : 413,604 = 413,604
11.972 . 11,972 ; 11.972
4,585,650 66,590 4,652,240 {5.065) 4,647,175
: 36,215 36.215 z 36,215
5172 3,203 8,375 3 8.375
5.536.103 ° 838,237 6,374,340 6,374,340
25,503 25,503 - 25,503
81312 81,312 : 81.312
5,648,090 877.655 §.525,745 : 8,525,745
$ 10233740 $ 944245 § 11177985 $  (5065) $ 11,172.920
LIABIL{TIES AND NET ASSETS
$ 79216 § 19905 S 99121 § .8 99421
1,290,169 5336 1,295,505 ; 1,285.505
128.546 N 128,546 ; 128,546
193,093 ] 193.093 : 193,093
N 5,065 5.065 (5.065) .
849,145 I 849,145 1 849,145
36,292 17 36,309 : 36,309
36,264 . 36,264 ) 36,264
2,612,725 30,323 2,643,048 (5,065) 2,637,983
2,281,290 776.686 3.057.976 z 3.057.976
. 2,853 2,853 ‘ 2,853
45,043 3 45,048 45,048
2,326,338 779,539 3,105,877 : 3,105,877
4,939,063 809,862 5,748,925 (5.065) 5,743,860
5.118.692 134,383 5,253,075 . 5253.075
175.985 ; 175,985 - 175.985
5,294 677 134,383 5,429,060 2 5,429,060
$ 10233740 $ 944245 § 11477985 § (5065 $ 11.172.920

See Notes to Financial Statements
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CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT

Grant revenue
Fees for service
Rent revenue
Public support
In-kind donations
Interest
Fundraising
Other revenue

Loss on disposal of property

Total revenues and other support

EXPENSES
Program services
Child services
Community services
Energy assistance
Housing
Weatherization

Total program services
Supporting activities

Management and general
Fundraising

Tolal expenses

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS BEFORE ACQUISITION

OF PROPERTY AND LAND

ACQUISITION OF PROPERTY AND LAND

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

Community
Action
Partnership Academy
of Strafford Street Family
County Housing, LLC Consolidated
$ 16,787 565 $ - $ 16,787,565
3,030,181 - 3,030,181
- 65,397 65,397
361,132 - 361,132
767,224 - 767,224
235 854 1,089
227,539 - 227,539
31,951 31,951
(79,338) (79.338)
21,126,489 66,251 21,192,740
5,618,514 - 5,618,514
1,213,031 - 1,213,031
4,088,771 - 4,088,771
5,392,053 83,088 5,475,141
3,309,103 - 3,309,103
19,621,472 83,088 19,704,560
1,522,812 - 1,522,812
197,469 - 197,469
21,341,753 83,088 21,424,841
{215,264) (16,837) (232,101)
720,514 - 720,514
505,250 {16,837) 488,413
4,789,427 151,220 4,940,647
$ 5,294,677 $ 134,383 $ 5,429,060

See Notes to Financial Statements
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NOTE 1.

NOTE 2.

NOTE 3.

NOTE 4.

NOTE §.

COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFORD COUNTY

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of Federal Awards (the Schedule)
includes the federal award activity of Community Action Partnership of Strafford
County under programs of the federal government for the year ended December
31, 2023. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a
selected portion of the operations of Community Action Parinership of Strafford
County, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes
in net assets, or cash flows of the Agency.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of
accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles
contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not -
allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

INDIRECT COST RATE
Community Action Partnership of Strafford County has elected not to use the ten
percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

FOOD DONATION

Nonmonetary assistance is reported in the Schedule at the fair value of the
commodities received and disbursed.

SUBRECIPIENTS

Community Action Partnership of Strafford County had no subrecipients for the
year ended December 31, 2023.
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COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFORD COUNTY

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON
AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors of
Community Action Partnership of Strafford County

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the consolidated
financial statements of Community Action Partnership of Strafford County (a New Hampshire
nonprofit organization) and Affiliate, which comprise the consolidated statements of financial
position as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, and the related consolidated statements of
activities, functional expenses, and cash flows, and the related notes to the consolidated
financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated June 5, 2024,

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

in planning and performing our audit of the consolidated financial statements, we considered
Community Action Partnership of Strafford County's intemal control over financial reporting
(internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances
for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Community Action Partnership of
Strafford County’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of Community Action Partnership of Strafford County's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet -
important enough to merit attention by those charged with govemance.
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in intemal control
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material
- weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have not been identified. We identified a
deficiency in intemal control, described in the.accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs as item 2023-001, that we consider to be a significant deficiency.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Community Action Partnership of
Strafford County's financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the organization’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the

organization's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable
for any other purpose.

A/M, e Lonae X ¢ IR
,;’2,{’;{/\/; ston? (Dsseciahion

Daver, New Hampshire
June 5, 2024
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COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFORD COUNTY
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR

EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors of
Community Action Partnership of Strafford County

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

Opinlon on Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Community Action Partnership of Strafford County's compliance with the
types of compliance requirements identified as subject to audit in the OMB Compliance
Supplement that could have a -direct and material effect on each of Community Action
Partnership of Strafford County's major federal programs for the year ended December 31,
2023. Community Action Partnership of Strafford County's major federal programs are

identified in the summary of auditors’ results section of the accompanying schedule of findings
and questioned costs.

In our opinion, Community Action Partnership of Strafford County complied, in all material
respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to abave that could have a direct

and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended December 31,
2023.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform
Guidance are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance
section of our report.
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We are required to be independent of Community Action Partnership of Strafford County and
to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with relevant ethical requirements
relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program.
Our audit does not provide a legal determination.of Community Action Partnership of Straffard
County's compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the
requirements of laws, statutes, requlations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant

agreements applicable to Community Action Partnership of Strafford County's federal
programs.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with
the compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and
express an opinion on Community Action Partnership of Strafford County's compliance based
on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will
always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material
noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control. Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered
material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would
influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about

Community Action Partnership of Strafford County's compliance with the requirements of each
major federal program as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government
Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, we:

» Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit.

* |dentify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error,
and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding Community Action Partnership of
Strafford County's compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

 Obtain an understanding of Community Action Partnership of Strafford County’s internal
control over compliance relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report on internal control over
compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Community Action Partnership of

Strafford County’s internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.
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We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and
material weaknesses in internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a
control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a
type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe
than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed
to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these
limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, material

weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance may exist that were
not identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal contro! over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose.

/@4 MeDonnell i Kberls
f’r;p/.fs stond (s s50c:abior?

Dover, New Hampshire
June §, 2024
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COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSH|P QF STRAFFORD CQUNTY

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

A. SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS

1.

The auditors’ report expresses an unmodified opinion on whether the consolidated
financial statements of Community Action Partnership of Strafford County and Affiliate
were prepared in accordance with GAAP.

One significant deficiency relating to the audit of the consolidated financial statements is
reported in the Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control Over Financial
Reporting and on Compliance and other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial
Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards. No
material weaknesses are reported.

No instances of noncompiiance material to the financial statements of Community
Action Partnership of Strafford County, which would be required to be reported in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards, were disclosed during the audit.

No significant deficiencies in internal control over major federal award programs are
reported in the Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance for Each Major Program
and on Intemal Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance. No
material weaknesses are reported. ' '

The auditors’ report on compliance for the major federal award programs for Community
Action Partnership of Strafford County expresses an unmodified opinion on all major
federal programs.

There were no audit findings that would be required to be reported in accordance with 2
CFR section 200.516(a).

. The programs tested as major were: U.S. Department of Health and Human Services,

Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program, ALN 93.568 and U.S. Department of
the Treasury, Emergency Rental Assistance Program, ALN 21.023, Coronavirus State
and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds, ALN 21.027, U.S Department of Energy,
Weatherization Assistance for Low-Income Persons, ALN 81.042. i

The threshold used for distinguishing between Type A and B programs was $750,000.

Community Action Partnership of Strafford County was determined to not be a low-risk
auditee. .

B. FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT
2023-001

Condition. Accounts receivable was not reconciled to the aging report and uncollectible

amounts were not written off timely. Bad debt expense was recognized in the current year as
a result.



Criteria. Internal controls should be in place to ensure that accounts receivable are
reconciled frequently to the aging report and accounts receivable are reviewed for
collectability reguiarly. This reconciliation should be reviewed and approved by the CFO.

Cause: There has been a great deal of staff tumover in the Agehcy and the difficulty in hiring

qualified people into the fiscal department has made proper accounting controls hard to
achieve.

Effect. An entry in the amount of $97,154 was posted to the current year bad debt expense.
As nearly all accounts receivable is driven by billing for expenses under grants, it is normally
deemed 100% collectible. As such, revenue in a prior year was overstated by the $97,154.

Recommendation: We recommend that accounts receivable be reviewed regularly and any
amounts that are deemed uncollectible are written off timely and/or establish an aflowance for
doubtful accounts. We also recommend that procedures are implemented to ensure that
monthly reconciliations for accounts receivable are being performed in a timely manner.

Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Actions. As previously discussed
during the fieldwork and noted in the report, staff turnover at CAPSC caused delays in some
reconciliations. due to training and hiring processes. There were no incorrect actions or
processes,; the delay in writing off outstanding accounts receivable was primarily due to staff
turnover.  With our newly completed fiscal team, we are now positioned to thoroughly
research and resolve all outstanding accounts receivable balances. We are confident that our

established procedures for monthly reviews and follow-up activities will effectively address
this issue.

C. FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS
AUDIT

None
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of Strafford County

Administrative Office:

577 Central Avenue, Suite 10 5
Dover, NH 03820 2024 Board of Directors

603-435-2500 . 2
Executive Committee

Early Childhood Education ) )
Centers: Terry Jarvis ~ Chair
577 Central Avenue, Suite 50 Jean Miccolo ~ Treasurer
Dover, N 03820 Alan Brown ~ Sccrctary
603-285-9460

Board Members
120 Main Street
Farmington, NH 03835 Heather Blumenfeld
§03-755-2881 Anthony M. Carr ’

Leah Crouser
150 Wakefield Street, Suite 117 Nicki Gearwar
Rochester, NH 03867 Robt?rt Harrington
503-285-9461 Katrin Kasper

Sarah Kuhl
46 Stackpole Road Christine McCluskey
Somerswarth, NH 03878 Brandi McKay-Berry
603-817-5458 lan Oneail

James Rathbun

family Resource Centers: Maureen Staples

577 Central Ave, Suite SO ;"ark ?’"S?ai:f
Dover, NH 03820 teve Trozinski
Robert Warach
603-435-2500 ;
Roxanne Osgood
10 Cold Spring Manar Bekki Carlson
Rochester, NH 03367
603-435-2500
Outreach Office:

§77 Central Avenue, Suite 20
Dover, NH 03820
603-435-2500

10 Cold Spring Manor
Rochester, NH 03867
603-435-2500

Food Pantries:

$77 Central Avenue, Suite 10
Dover, NH 03820
603-435-2500

10 Cold Spring Manor
Rochester, NH 03867
§03-435-2500



Staff Position Annual Salary Paid by SEAS
TBD Director $80,683.20 | $0

Lisa Garcia Program Manager $60,694.40 | $0

Heidi Clough Lead Certifier $59,779.20 | $0

Sabrina Colantoni  [Certifier $44,179.20 | $0

Megan Hewitt Certifier $44,179.20 {$0

Cassandra Martin Lead Intake: $53,456.00 | $0

Rhonda Preston Intake $45,968.00 | $0. -
vacant Intake $43,160.00 | $0

vacant Intake $43,160.00 -{ $0

vacant Program Assistant $43,160.00 | $0

$0




Jennifer Shockey, Assurance 16 Specialist
Community Action Partnership of Strafford County

Work Experience

Assurance 16 Specialist, Community Action Partnership of Strafford County, Dover, NH, Dec 2022 ~ Present

*” @&

Provide self-sufficiency support to households that have required an expedited FAP application due to
a home emergency .

Maintain a consistent and effective program. ensuring positive staff/client communication and overall
staff satisfaction
Provide coordinated service delivery

Provide counseling to promote self-sufficiency, which includes case management regarding energy
conservation and budgeting

Conduct a needs assessment with each client

Provides intervention on behalf of qualified households with energy suppliers

Ensures applications are completed within program guidelines

Reviews fuel applications to certify proper completion and accuracy; this includes determining that
the application is properly documented and certifying that appropriate program criteria were applied
and that application information is comrect

Recordkeeping, reporting and other activities as needed to administer the program fully and faizly
Act as a resource 1o agency staff and other community programs regarding the interpretation of
program-related federal, state, and county regulations and policies related to community services
programming

Speak to community groups to explain agency pufposes, programs, and policies

Establish/maintain relationships with other agencies and'organizations in the community to meet
community needs and to ensure thal services are not duplicated

Ability to work a flexible schedule as required

Maintain professionai boundaries with all current, past, and prospective clients

Perform other related duties as assigned

Fuel and Electrical Assistance Certifier. Community Action Partnership of Strafford County. Dover, NH

*

Determine if application is properly documented

Certify the appropriate program criteria were applied, and that application information is correct
Work directly with intake/outreach workers to answer questions

Intake Specialist, Community Action Partnership of Strafford County, Dover, NH

Began employment for CAPSC Dec 2020

Yolunteer, Safe Harbor Recovery Center. Portsmouth, NH

Administrative Assistant, Pebble Marviand Animal Hospital, Las Vegas, NV

Administrative Assistant, Dean’s Construction, Wickliffe, OH

Education

Peer Recovery Training, Choices, Sep 2020 - Dec 2021

Administrative Assistant Fundamentals, HIPAA, Nov 2019 — Jan 2020

Organizations

Volunteer, Safe Harbor Recovery Center

“ection
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Cassandra Martin

Customer service

| have worked in customer service for 20 plus years Solving customer issues and increasing overall client
satisfaction.| have a passion working within the community and have compassion and empathy for each
person’s personal situation. | am confident in my ability to adjust my actions of behaviors as needed, and -
consider myself adaptable to all situations. | know | can bring value to your organization and would love
the chance to discuss how my experience and skills can contribute to your company.

Authorized to work in the US for any émployer

Work Experience

Lead intake Specialist

Community Action Partnership of Strafford County-Dover, NH
February 2023 to Present

* Perform variety of outreach services, includin? conducting intake meetings with clients applying for
assistance, making internal and external referrals. and supervising the intake team.

* Follow FAP/EAP policies and procedures.
* Ensure applications are completed within program guidelines.
= Maintain case files.

* Supervise Intake team

* Conduct monthly supervision and team meetings.

Taxi Driver
Thomas Tax Service-Saint Albans, VT
June 2016 to June 2022

T;-ansportation and delivery services. Dispatch and answer customer calls, collect payments. Schedule
clients.

Sales Associate
Advantage rental-Saint Albans, VT
July 2005 to May 2016

Customer sales, service, management, accounts payable and receivable, arrange furniture on the
showroom floor, delivered furniture, appliances, electronics. Reviewed potential customer applications
and checked references. Faxed and copied paper work, filed customer contracts and apptications.
Answered phones, greeted customers.

Education

High school diploma or GED in General Studies
Bellows Free Academy Uhsd#48 - Highgate, VT
August 2002 to June 2006



Skills

* Load & Unload

* Delivery Driver Experience
* Accounts Receivable

* Accounts Payable

* Account Reconciliation

* General Ledger Accounting
* Driving

« Payroll

* Data Entry

* Pricing

* Customer service

* Supervising experience {1 year)

Certifications and Licenses

Driver's License



Heidi Clough, Lead Certifier
Community Action Partnership of Strafford County

Work Expericnce

Lead Certifier, Community Action Partnership of Strafford County, Dover, NH, Jun 2022 — Present

*  Supervise Certification Staff within the Fuel and Electric Assistance Department

¢ Certifies applications for accuracy and completeness

*  Works with Lead Intake to plan and execute staff training

*  Works with Fuel Assistance Manager and Lead Intake to plan and execute process and procedures

Fuel and Electric Assistance Manager. Community Action Partnership of Strafford County, Dover, NH. Nov
2020 = Jun 2022

* Plan, and coordinate Community Action Pantnership of Strafford County Fucl and Elccmc Assistance
programs including Fuel and Electric assistance and other relfated programs

* Manage full time and seasonal Qutreach staff, providing direction and guidance on the content of

work and overseeing the quality and scope of programs as well as the employee’s individual
performance

*  Oversee policies regarding participant involvement, program requirements and benefit determinations
¢ Preparing and submitting weekly reimbursement requests for the Fuel Assistance
¢ Review monthly Fuel and Electric Assistance Reports

Fuel and Electric Assistance Interim Manager, Community Action Partnership of Strafford County, Dover, NH
Jul 2020 - Nov 2020

Ottreach Specialist/USDA Coordinator Dover, NH, Community Action Partnership of Strafford County,
Dover, NH, Nov 2003 - Jul 2020

Educatjon/Certifications

Associate degree, Business/Computer Applications, Mclntosh College, Dover, NH
 Certificates in: Motivational interviewing

Basic, Safe Food Handling

Updated MS Office applications

Workplace Violence: Prevention, Safety and Survival

Connecting through communication Basics

< Astion
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Lisa Garcia, Fuel and Electric Assistance Manager
Community Action Partnership of Strafford County

Work Expericnce

Fuel and Electric Assistance Manager, Community Action Partnership of Strafford County, Dover, NH, Jun
2022 - Present

» Responsible for day the day-to-day operations and management of the Fuel and Electric
Assistance Program, including planning, implementation, monitoring, and reporting.

» Responsible for creating and maintaining procedures to successfully process and certify
applications through excellent customer service and application processes.

o Ensure that we are servicing our community in an effective manner scheduling outreach activities

to increase the visibility of our programs, offer increased appointment times in office and creating
an increased social media presence.

¢ Oversee staff including schedules, reviews, and professional development.

« Empower team to create trainings, procedures, and documentation for best practices and
encourage an environment of teamwork and accountability.

*  Keep accurate records to ensure program monitoring guidelines are met.
s  Creating relationships with CAPSC community, partners, and vendors to better serve our clients.
¢ Work with other departments to work lowards a whole family approach.

e Participate in discussions pertaining to the Fucl and Electric Programs and other programs that
will be implemented in the future as part of energy services.

s Attend trainings to further knowledge.
Billing Specialist, Community Action Partnership of Strafford County, Dover, NH. Dec 2021 - May 2022

o  Work with fuel vendors to manage and pay invoices for enrolled clients through the fuel
assistance program

¢ Manage all documentation for Vendor agreements and W-9 documents for landlords. Manage all
documentation for invoices and payments to adhere to State monitoring requirements
Manage CAP fuel vendor mailbox to ensurc all billing issued are resolved in a timely manner

s Manage Gift of Warmth program, using multiple systems to complete paymenis. Send monthly
unexpended reports to vendors to maximize benefit usage

* Send notification letters to clients, vendors, and landlords as clients are enrolled

e Creale relationships with vendors, fucl team members, clients and others who work here at CAP
to learn what | can to succeed in my role

¢ Leamning and using Empow0r as a too) for research, uploading documents and retrieving fuel
inquiries for follow up

Create documentation of job processes to assist anyone if ] am out of the office

»  Assist with the Weatherization team in a billing capacity lcaming many other systems in a short
period of time to competency and reliability

Independent Contractor/Self Employed, Personal Shopper, Instacart, Feb 2019 - Dec 2021

Co-Owner, iBody Therapeutic Massage and Bodywork, May 2020 ~ Present

B;tsine.v.f Operations Coordinator, Senior Customer Support Specialist, Cole Haan, Oct 2009 - May 2020
Professional Development Assisiant, Temporary, Measured Progress, Feb 2009 — Oct 2009

Research & Analysis Assistant, Temporary, Measured Progress, Nov 2008 — Feb 2009

Quality Assurance Assistani, Temporary, Measured Progress, Oct 2008 - Nov 208

community
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Lisa Garcia, Fucl and Electric Assistance Manager
Community Action Partnership of Strafford County

Education

Associate of Applied Science, Business (with honors), University of New Hampshire, Durham, NH, 1996
Business course work, Bismarck Community College, ND, 1987 - 1989 '

Diploma, Bismarck High School, ND, 1987

Organizations

Elected Selectmen, Dover, NH, 2021 Election

Election Volunteer, Dover, NH, 2020 - Present

United Way Day of Caring, 2009 — Present

Military Service, US Army Rescrves, 1992 — 2000

Parcnt/Teacher Organization Fundraiser Chair, Home Street School

of Strafford County



Sabrina Colantoni, Fuel and Electric Certifier

Work Experience

Fuel and Eleciric Certifier, Community Action Partnership of Strafford Ceunty, Dover, NH, 2021 - Present

Fuel and Electric Intake Specialist, Community Action Partnership of Strafford County, Dover, NH, 2019 -

2021

Internship, Data Entry Specialist, Community Action Partnership of Strafford County, Dover, NH, 2019

Internship, City Clerk, Rochesier Town Hall, Rochester, NH, 2019

School Bus Driver, First Student inc., Exeter, NH. 2012 - 2018

Skills Summary

* & @

Accurately file documents for efficient retrieval

Answering and transferring calls

Entering customer information into computer and taking detailed messages
Success in maintaining quality and productivity while meeting quotas
Achieve positive customer interactions with a smile and warm tone

Display patience while working in difficult situations and express empathy while working with
custorers

Maintaining a clean and organized work environment

Proven track record of following state and federal guidelines and regulations
Maintain utmost confidentiality

Conduct routine safety checks and exemplary hand/eye coordination to ensure safety
Maximize service experience through answering the questions of customers

Process payments by cash, check and electronically

Attentive and appropriate responses to customers’ wants and needs

Education

Platinum Level, National Career Readiness Certificate, Rochester, NH, 2019

Diploma, Newmarket Jr./Sr. High Schoot, Newmarket, NH, 2007

[
ction
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Megan Hewitt Fuel and Electric Certifier

Community Action Partnership of Strafford Co

Fuel and Electric Certifier. Community Action Partnership of Strafford County, Dover, NH, 2023  Present

Fuel and Electric Intake Specialist, Community Action Parinership of Strafford County, Dover, NH, 2022 —

2023

Subrogation Specialist, CCS Companies 2009-2014

Skills Summary

Accurately file documents for efficient retrieval

Attention to detail

Answering and transferring calls

Entering customer information into computer and taking detailed messages
Success in maintaining quality and productivity while meeting quotas
Resolving customer disputes

Display patience while working in difficult situations and express empathy while working with
custorners

Maintaining a clean and organized work environment

Proven track record of following state and federal guidelines and regulations
Maintain confidentiality

De-escalation high conflict customers and clients

Exceptional interpersonal skill

Maximize service experience through answering the questions of customers
Process payments by check and elecironically

Negotiating payment terms

FDCPA literacy

Anticipating the needs of clients and customers

Education

A.D Paralegal Studies, Hesser College, Portsmouth NH 2009

Diploma, Oyster River High School, Durham NH 2005

[
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Rbonda C. Preston

. WORK EXPERIENCE
09/2014 - Present - FAP/EAP Program May contact: Lica Garcia 603-835-2500 Ext 8137

Completed FAP/EAP applications to help peaple get assistance with Oil and Electric
07/2013- /2022~ Summer Meal Progrom

Unitizer/Transporter/Server May contact: Jamie Swan 603-285-9461 Ext 2339
* Boagged Breakfost ond Lunch. Packed coolers

Helped cook, prepare ond serve meals ot High School when needed
Unloaded coolers ot the end of the day
Supervised staff members and sites
Kept records of meol counts and cooler slips
09/2013 - 6/2022 Commun!ty Action Partnership of Strofford County Rochester Head Start

Program Assistant May Contoct: Kristen Comeau 435-2500 Ext 8193
Answer multi line phones, take and deliver méssages to staff
‘Maintain schedule for Conference Rooms and Early Head Start van
Greet and assist families and visitors
Send faxes, emails and paperwork out for staff
Take care of incoming and outgoing mail
Type correspondence, newsletters, and meeting minutes as assigned
* Work in Excel and Word

a & & & & &

10/2012 - 07/2013 Zinga Frozen Yogurt Rochester, NH
03/02 - 06/11 Franklin School District/Franklin Middle School Franklin, NH
Attendance Secretary

. Tracked student’s absences and tardiness
] Entered attendance into the computer and distributed to staff
. Contacted parents when a student was absent or unexcused
. Answered multi line phone, took and delivered messages to staff and
students’ .
. Did morning and afternoon announcements over PA system
. Worked in Excel and Word

Administrative Secretary

s Maintained budget for four grade levels
s  Entered purchase orders into computer and reconciled items against
purchase order

*  Kept track of checking account and grade accounts on computer
Guidance Secretary

] Entered new students into the system and withdrew students who
moved
. Entered students grades into the computer every quarter, ran off
progress reports & report cards
¢ Entered new student schedules and made changes to student
schedules
*  Setup parentfteacher, IEP and student meetings for staff and
counselor
TRAININGS
Excel Basics, Microsoft Excel Level 1, Microsoft Excel Level 2, EmpowOR

EDUCATION
Martha's Vineyard Regional High School High School Diploma  References available upan request
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Jared 5. Chicoine
. . Tet. (503) 271-3670
DEPUTY COMMISSIONER
Chwtstopher J. Elma, Jr. FAX No. 271-1828
- . I . I b :
DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY . - asdl 6
21 S.Fnui 5L, Sute 10
Concord, N.H. 03301.2420
 October 24, 2022
His Excellency, Governor Chnstopher T. Sununy
and the Honorable Councit -
State House :
Concord, New Hampshire 03301 e

The Department of Energy respectfully requests authorization to enter into a SOLE SOURCE contract
with Community Action Partnership of Strafford County, (VC #177200), Dover, NH, in the amount of $7,003
for the Senior Energy Assistance Services (SEAS) Program, effective upon Governor and Executive
Council approval through September 30, 2025..100% Other Funds (NH DHHS). E

Funds are avﬁilable in the account bélow as follows for FY23 and are anticipated to be available in FY24
and FY25 upon the continued appropriation and availability of funds in the future opcrating budget, with
the authority to adjust encumbrances in each of the State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office if

needed and justified.
NH Depantment of Energy, Fue| Assistance - EY 2023 FY 2024 FY 2025
02-52-52-520010-33540000-074-500587 y

Grants for Pub Assist & Relief : $2626 $3502  $875

S XP ATION -
This contract is SOLE SOURCE based on the historical performance of the Community Action
Agencies (CAAs) with the New Hampshire Fuel Assistance Program (LIHEAP). The Senior Energy
Assistance Services (SEAS) Program makes home energy more affordable for households with members
who are sixty years of age or older, who are experiencing 8 home energy hardship, and who are not
cligible for the state’s Fuel Assistance Program under the current income limits. The CAAs determine
eligibility for the Fuel Assistance Program and are sble to efficiently. distribute these funds to households

in nced that are not eligible for that program.

A federal grant under the Older Americans Act funds (Title |11B) awarded to the New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services (NH DHHS) Division of Elderty and Adult Services provides
funding for the Senior Energy Assistance Services Program. A Memorandum of Understanding for this
‘program was previously approved by the Governor and Executive Council on March 23, 2022, Item #25. -

In the event that the Other Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be requested to
support this program. .

fully Submitted, :

T
-

Jared Chicoine
Commissioner

LY
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PORM NUMBER P-37 (version 12/11/2019)"

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall became public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Councl] for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be cicarly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS
1. IDENTIFICATION,
1.1 State Agency Name 1.2 State Agency Address
New Hampshire Department of Energy 21 So. Fruit Street, Stz. 10
Concord, New Hampshire 03301
t.3 Contractor Name : 1 1.4 Contractor Address
- | Community Action Partmership of Strafford County 577 Central Avenue, Suite 10, PO Box 160, Dover, NH 03820
1.5 Contractor Phone 1.6 Account Number 1.7 Completion Date 1.8 Price Limitation
Number " | 02-52-52-520010- September 30, 2025 $7,003
(603) 516-8130 33540000-074-500587
S52SEAS23 |
1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency 1.10 Stete Agency Telephone Number |
Eileen Smiglowski, Fuel Assistance Program Administrator (603) 271-1317
1.11 Contractor Signature ‘ 1.12 Neme and Titke of Contractor Signatory
' - ) Betyey Andrews Parker, Executive Director
72 A fa./\ o jyfRepR -
.13 State Agency Signature = 1.14 Name and Title of State Agency Signntory
- Jared Chicoine, Commissioner .
ook (- o= /0/0)/i4

.15/ Approval by the N.H. Depertment of Administration, Division of Personnel (1 applicable)
By: ’ TR Director, On:

1.16 Approval by the General (Form, Substince and Execution) (|f applicable)
m:%@ on:  11/4/2022

1.17 Approval by the Govenor and Executive Council (if applicabls)

_O&Cl@mber:. 7 O " G&CMecting Dase: NOV 22 2022
(WK SECRETARY OF STATE
Page t of § P
CAPSC 2101 FHIOASS

CFDA#93.044
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1. -SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The State of New
Hampshire, acting through the agency identified in block |.(
("State™), engages contractor identified in block 1.3
(“Contractor™) to perform, and the Contractor shall perform, the
work or sale of goods, or both, identified and more particularly
described in the attached EXHIBIT B which is incorporated
herein by reference (“Services™).

3. EFFECTIYE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Govemor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if applicable,
this Agreement, and all obligztions of the parties hereunder, shall
become effective on the date the Governor and Executive
Councii approve this Agreement as indicated in block 1.17,
unless no such approval is required, in which case the Agreement
shall become effective on the date the Agreement is signed by
the State Agency as shawn in block 1.13 (“Effective Date™).

3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effectjve Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to

the' Effective Date shall be performed a1 the tole risk of the.

Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not become
cffective, the State shail have no liability to the Contractor,
including without limitation, any obligation to pay the
Contractor for eny costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete ] Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7. '

4. CONDITTONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrery, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
* contingent upon the availability and continued sppropriation of
funds affected by any state or federal legislative or executive
sction that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies the
tpproprization or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Secrvices provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in
pri. In no event shall the State be linble for any payments
hereunder in excess of such svailable appropriated funds. In the
event of a reduction or termination of eppropriated funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment gntil such funds
become available, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or
terminate the Services under this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or termination.
The State shatl not be required to transfer funds from any other
account or source o the Account identified in block 1.6 in the
event funds in that Account are reduced or unavailable.

S. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT. ' '

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of payment
arc identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by reference.

Page 2 of §

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State shali
have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract price.
5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement those
liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80:7-¢ or any other provision of law.

3.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, end notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no |
event shall the total of al! payments suthorized, or ectually made .

hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8.

§. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with -all applicable statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal
suthorities which impose 2ny obligation or duty upon the

Contractor, including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal

employment opportunity laws. In sddition, if this Agreement is
funded in any part by monies of the United States, the Contractor
shall comply with all federal executive orders, rules, regulations
and statutes, and with any rules, regulations and guidelines as the
State or the United States issue to implement these regutations.
The Contractor shali also comply with ell applicable intellectual

property laws.

" 6.2 During the term of this Agréement, the Contractor shall not

discriminate against employees or applicants for employment
because of race, color, religion, creed, ege, sex, handicap, sexual
orientation, or national origin and will take affirmative action to
prevent such discrimination.

6.3. The Contractor agrees to permit the State or United States
access 1o any of the Coatractor's books, records and accounts for
the purpose of ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations
and orders, and the covenants, terms and conditions of this
Agreement. )

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all personnel -
necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor wesrants that

all personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to

perform the Services, and shall be properly licensed and

otherwise authorized to do so under all pplicable laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise suthorized in writing, during the term of
this ‘Agreement, and for & period of six (6) months after the

Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire, and

shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or

corporation with whom it is engaged in & combined effort to

perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State employee

Contractor Initials %P
Datz jplLo|2¥

CAPSC 210INHOASS
CFDA#93.044
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or official, who is materislly involved in the procurement,
administration or performance of this Agreement. This
provision shall survive termination of this Agreement.

1.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, shall be the State's represeniative. In the event of any
dispute concemning the interpretation of this Agreement, the
Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the Siate.

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shail constitute an event of default hereunder (“Event
of Default™):

8.0.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule; ) }

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 faiture to perform any other covenant, term or condition of
this Agreement. )
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may
tzke zny one, or more, or all, of the following actions:

8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of
& greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30) days from the

date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is not timely cured,

terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) days after giving the
Contractor notice of termination;

8.2.2 give the Contracter a written notice specifying the Eventof -

Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agresment end ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
thall never be paid to the Contractor;

8.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Defeuht and set off against any other obligations the State may
owe (o the Contractor any dzmages the State suffers by reason of
any Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Defaul, treat "the Agreement as breached, terminate the
Agreement and pursue any of its remedies st law or in equity, or
both.

8.3. Ne failure by the State to enforce any provisions hercof after
eny Event of Default shatl be deemed & waiver of its rights with
regard 1o that Event of Default, or any subsequemt Event of
Default. No express failure to enforce any Event of Defauh shall
be deemed & waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and
alt of the provisions hereof upon eny finther or other Event of
Defauh on the part of the Contractor.

9. TERMINATION.
9.1 Nowwithstanding parsgraph 8, the State may, at its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or

Page 3 of § :

in part, by thirty (30) days written notice to the Contractor that
the Stato is exercising its option to terminate the Agreement. -

9.2 In the event of an carly termiination of this Agreement for
any reason other than the completion of the Services, the
Contractor shall, st the Saate's discretion, deliver to the

.Contracting Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date

of termination, a report (“Termination Report™) describing in
detail a)! Services performed, and the contract price ezmed, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject matter,
content, and-number of copies of the Termination Report shall
be identical to those of any Final Report described in the attached

" EXHIBIT B. In addition, af the State’s discretion, the Contractor

shall, within 15 days of notice of early terminztion, develop end
submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement.

10. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION,

- 10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “dam” shall mean all

information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited 10, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordingy, pictorial reproductions, drawings, snalyses, graphic
representations, computer programs, computer printouts, notes,
letters, memorands, papers, and documents, all whether
finished or unfinished. :

10.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon termination
of this Agreement for any reason.

10.3 Confidentiality of data shafl be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the Siate.

|

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. Inthe
performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all respects
an independent contractor, end is neither an agent nor an
cmployee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of s
officers, employees, agents or members shall have suthority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation or
other emohiments provided by the State to its employees,

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.

12.1 The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice, which
shall be provided to the State at least fifteen (15) days prior to

" the assignment, and a written consent of the State. For purposes

of this paragraph, a Change of Conmrol shall constitute
assignment. “Change of Control” means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or scries of related transactions in
which a third party, together with its affiliates, becomes the
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direct or indirect owner of fifty percent {50%) or more of the
voting shares or similar equity interests, or combined voting
power of the Contractor, or (b) the sake of all or substantially all
of the assets of the Contractor. ) ,
12.2 Nonc of the Services shall be subcontracted by the
Contractor without prior written notice and consent of the State.
The State is entitled to copies of all subcontracts and assignment
agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions contained
in & subcontract or en assignment agreement to which it is not 2
party. :

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Unless otherwise exempeed by law,
the Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the State, its
officers and employees, from and against any and all ¢laims,
liabilities and costs for any personal injury or propesty damages,
patent or copyright infringement, or other claims asserted against
the Stxte, its officers or employces, which zrise out of {or which

‘may be claimed to arise out of) the acts or omission of the
Contractor, or subcontractors, including but not timited 1o the
negligence, reckiess or intentionsl conduct. The State shall not
be liable for any costs incurred by the Contractor arising under
this paragraph 1 3. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constirute 8 waiver of the sovereign
immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby reserved to the
Sute. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the
termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
continuously meintain in force, and shall require any
subcontractor or assignee to obtain and maintsin in force, the
following insurance:

4.1.1 commercial general liability insurance against all claims
of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not
less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate
or excess; and _

14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all property
subject to subparagraph 10.2 hereln, in an amount not less than
80% of the whole replacement value of the property.

14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be
on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the State
of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and
issued by insurers licensed (n the State of New Hampshire.

14.3 The Contractor shall furnish-to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s) of
insursnce for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also fumish to the Contracting Officer identified
in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of insurance
for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this Agreement no

later than ten (10) days prior to the expiration date of each

insurance policy. . The certificate(s) of insurance and any
rencwals thercof shall be attached and are incorporated herein by
reference.
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I5. WORKERS' COMPENSATION. © ’

I5.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, cestifies
and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with or exempt
from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A (“Workers'
Compensation*). -

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the requirements
of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall maintain, gnd
require any subcontractor or assignee (o secure and maintain,
payment of Workers' Compensation i connection with
activities which the person proposes to undertake pursuant to this
Agreement. The Contractor shall fumnish the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successar, proof of Workers'
Compensation in the manner described in N.H. RSA chapter
281-A and any spplicable. renewal(s) thereof, which shall be

attached end are incorporated herein by reference, The State
shall not be responsible for payment of sny Workers'

Compensation premiums or for any other claim or benefit for

Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of Contractor,

which might arise under applicable State of New Hampshire

Workers” Compensation faws in connectioh with the

performance of the Services under this Agreement.

16. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the time
of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in & United States
Post Office addressed to the partics at the addresses given in’
blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

17. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be emended, wrived
or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed by the
parties hereto and only after approval of such amendment,
waiver or discharge by the Govemnor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire unkess no such epproval is required
under the circumstances pursuant to State faw, rule or policy.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. This Agreement ghall
be governed, interpreted and construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the partics and their respective successors
and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is the wording
chosen by the parties to express their mutual intent, and no rule
of construction shall be applied against or in favor of any party.
Any actions arising out of this Agreement shall be brought and
maintained in New Hampshire Superior Court which shall have
exclusive jurisdiction thereof. :

19. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a conflict
berween the terms of this P-37 form (2s modified in EXHIBIT

A) and/or attachments and amendment thereof, the terms of the
P-37 (=s modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.
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10. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties-and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agrecment are
for reference purposes only, and the words. contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the
interpeetation, construction o¢ meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement,

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set forth in the entached EXHIBIT A are incorporated
herein by reference,

Page S of §

23. SEVERABILITY. la the event any of the provisions of this
Agreement are held by a count of competent jurisdiction to be
contrary to any state or federal law, the remnining provisions of
this Agreement will remain in full force and effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be

" executed in 8 number of counterparts, each of which shall be

deemed an original, constitutes the entire agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings with respect to the subject matter
hereof.

Contractor Initials 2
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~ NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
EXHIBITA

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

1. On or before the date set forth in Block 1.7 of the General Pnlvisions. the Contractor shall deliver to
the State an independent audit of the Contractor’s entire agency by a qualified independent auditor in
good standing with the state and federal govemment.

1.1 This audit shall be conducted in accordance with the audit requirements of the 2 CFR 200,
Subject F- Audit Requirements.

1.2 This audit report shall include a schedule of revenues and expenditures by contractor or grant
number of all expenditures during the Contractor’s fiscal year. The Contractor shall utilize a
competitive bidding process to choose a qualified financial auditor at least every four years.

1.3 The audit report shall include a schedule of prior years questioned costs along with an agency
response to the status of the prior years questioned costs. Copies of all OMB letters written as
& result of audits shall be forwarded to NHDOE. The audit shall be forwarded to NHDOE
within one month of the time of receipt by the agency, accompanied by an action plan for
each finding or questioned cost, :

2 Thecosts cbarged under this Agreement shall be determined as allowable under the cost principles
detailed in CFR 200 Subpart E- Cost Principles.

3 Program and financial records pertaining to this Agreement shall be retained by the agency for
3(three) years from the date of submission of the final expenditure report per 2-CFR 200.333 0
Retention Requirements for Records end until all audit findings have been resolved.

4 No portion of the funds pald under this Agreement may be used for the purpose of oblaining additional
Federal funds under any law of the United States, except is authorized under the law, .

5 CLOSE QUT OF CONTRACT All final required fcpo—rts and reimbursement requests shall be submitted
to the State within thirty (30) days of the completion date (Agreement Block 1.7).

The Department reserves the righl to extend this agreement for up to two(2) additional years, contingent
upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, written agreement of the parties and approval of
the Gevemnor and Executive Council.

-7 Peragraph 4 of the General Provisions is replaced as foliows:
4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT

o

Notwithstanding eny provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State,
hereunder, including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part, under this
Agreement are contingent upon continued appropristion or availability of funds, including any
subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability  of funds affected by any state or federal
legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies the appropriation or
availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of Services provided in Exhibit B, Scope of
Services, in whole or in part. In no event shali the State be linble for any payments hereunder in excess

CAPCSEAS2) ¢
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of appropriated or-available funds. In the event of a reduction, termination or modification of
appropriated or available funds, the State shall hate the right 10 withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever. The State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under
this Agreement immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or
- modification. The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or account into
- the Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number Or any other
account in the event funds are reduced or unavailable:

8 Amend paragraph 9.2 of the General Provisions by deleting the sentence: “The form, subject matter,
content, and number of copies of the Termination Report shall be identical to those of any Final
Report descrided in Exhibit B.”

‘9 Amend paragraph 9 of the General Provisions by adding the following subparagraphs:

9.3 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early termination,

-_develop and submit (o the State a Transition Plan for services under the  Agreement, including but not
limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients reccwmg services under the Agreement and
estabhshes a.process to meet those needs.

9.4 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall prompily provide detailed informstion

" to support the Transition Plan, including but not limited to, any information or data mquested by the State
related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan and shall provide ongoing commumcatton
and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as requested.

9.5 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving services
under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another enlity including contracted
providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for uninterrupted dehvery of services in the
tmn.smon Plan.

_ 9.6 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals about the
transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its Transition Plan submitted to
the State as described above.

CAPCSEAS2) : .
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
EXHIBITB
SCOPE OF SERVICES

The Contractor agrees to provide Senior Energy Assistance Services to qualified low-income individuals
and agrees to perform all such services and other work necessary to operate the program in accordance
with the principles and objectives set forth in the Fuel Assistance Program Procedures manua! and the
other guidance as determined by the New Hampshire Department of Energy (NHDOE).

Senior Energy Assistance Services (SEAS) will be defined to include the following categories:
|~ Outreach, eligibility determination, and certification of SEAS applicants.

2 Payments directly to energy vendors:
A Reimbursement for goods and services delivered.

3 Emergency Assistance in the form of reimbursement for goods or services.

CAPCSEASH)
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
EXHIBITC
PAYMENT TERMS

In consideration of the _satisféctory performance of the services as determined by the State, the State agrees to .
pay over to the Contractor the sum of $7,003.00 (which hereinafter is referred to as the “funds™)

~ The following funds will be authorized:
$7,003.00 for Senior Energy Assistance Services (SEAS)

;

The dates for.this contract are upon Govemor and Executive Council approval through September 30, 2025.

Approval to obligate the above-awarded funds will be provided in writing by the New Hampshire Depanment
of Energy to the Contractor. Reimbursements will be made to the Contractor only after written documentation
of cash needed is submitted to the State. Disbursement of these funds shall be in accordance with procedures

+ established by the State.
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF. ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT D

The Contrectar identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of.
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C.

701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor’s representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1,12 of -
the General Provisions, execute the following Certification:

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS
ALTERNATIVE 1 - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

This certification is required by the reguiations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace
Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31, 1989 regulations were
amended and published as Part 1] of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages 21681-21691), 2nd require
certification by grantees (and by inference sub-grantees and sub-contractors) prior to award that they will
maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the regulation provides that e grantee (and by inference
sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a state may elect to make one certification to the Department in each
federal fiscal year in licu of certificates for each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification.
The certificate set out bélow is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the Agency
awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments,
suspension or termination of grants, or government-wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form
should send it to: ’

Fuel Assistance Administrator, New Hampshire Department of Energy,
' 21 So. Fruit St,, Ste. 10, Concord, NH 03301

(A) The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

(2) Publishing s statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession of or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee’s workplace
and specifying the actions that will be teken against employees for violation of such prohibition;

M) Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about

{1) the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace.

(2 the grantee's policy of maintaining e drug-free workplace;

J) any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and

(4) the penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations occurring in
_the workplace.

(c) Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be
given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

(d) Notifying the employe"; in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee will

(D abide by the terms of the statement; and
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CERTTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS
ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS, cont’d

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS -
. US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
- US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE ~ CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY A | - "
(2) notifylheanployerinwﬁlingoflﬁsorhamwiaionforaviolalimofacﬁminﬂdmg
statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such conviction.

(e) Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days afier receiving notice under
subparegraph (d)(2) from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officar on whose grant ectivity the convicted employee was working, unless the federal agency
'has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;

(n Teking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph (d)X(2), with respect to any employee who is so convicted:

(1)  Teking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and inchuding
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or - ’

(2)  Requiring such employee to participatc satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or :
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a federal, state, or local health, law
enforcement, or other approprisie agency.

(8)  Making a good fith effort 1o continue to maimain a drug-free workplace through implementation
of mmhs (8), (®), (<), (d), (e); and (f).

(B)  The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) far the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each tocation)

Check [ if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Gamtrnsty lobin G 6. taft Loty et s 0,25
Contractor Name | Period covered by this Certification

Betoey Mndrtus ok (€)

Name and Title of Authorized Contractor Representative

J U /ZO/Z.L

Date
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. NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT E

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the pmvialom of Section
319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and 31 U.S.C. 1352,
and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General
Provisions, execute the following Certification:

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING
US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE -~ CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
Pmanma (indicate applicable program oovered) ;
SEAS o : [
Contract Period: ~ September 21, 2022 to September 30, 2025

The undersigned certifies 1o the best of his or her knowledge and belief thai:

(}) No federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any
. person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employec of any agency, & member of
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of 8 member of Congress in connection
with the ewarding of any federal contract, continuation, renewa), amendment, or modification of any
federzl contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (end by specific mention sub-grantes or sub-
contractor).

()  Ifany funds cther than federal appmpmtedﬁmdshavebmpazdormllbcpud to any person for
influeacing or attempting to influence an'officer or employee of any agency,  meraber of Congress, an
officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of 8 member of Congress in connection with this federal
contract, grant, loan, or cooperstive agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-contractor),
the undersigned shall complete and submit Standerd Form LLL, “Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying”,
in accordance with its instructions, artached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-|.

(3)  Theundersigned shall require that the language of this cerlification be included in the award document for
- sub-gwards at al) tiers (inchuding subcontracts, sub-grants, end contracts under grants, loans, and
cooperstive agreements) and that all sub-recipicnts shail certify and disclose accardingly.

This certification is & material representation of fact upon which reliance wes placed when this transaction was.
msde or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering Into this transaction
imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shafl be
subject to a,¢ivil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not mere than $100,000 for each such failure.

LM Cta
C?Sl’dractor Represeitative Signature Contractor's Represeritative Title
Cvmmun Aot Bngrship of Srafford toty fo)s fax
Contractor Name - .
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NEW HAMPS!iIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT F

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Prov:s:ons agrees to comply with the prows:ons of

Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment, Suspensu'm :

and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor’s representative, as identified in
Sections 1.11 and .12 of the-General Provisions, execute the followmg Certification:

CERTIF‘ICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS - PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

Instractions for Ccﬂfﬁmﬂon

m By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospectnve primary participant is provudmg the
certification set out below.

(2) The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial of
participation in this covered transaction. [f necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an explanation
of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be considered in connection

v+ with the NH DOE's determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective
primary participant to furnish a centification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation
in this transaction.

{3) The certification in thisclause is a material representauon of fact upon which reliance was pleced when NH
DOE determined to enter into this transaction. f it is later determined that the prospective primary
participant knowingly rendered an erroncous certification, in addition to other remedies available (o the
federnl govemment, NH DOE may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

(4) The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the NH DOE agency to whom
this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns that its
certification was erroncous when submitted.or has become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.

. (3) The terms “covered transaction,” “debarred,” “suspended,” “ineligible,” “lower tier covered transaction,”

'panicipant, “person,” “primary covered transaction,” “principal,” “proposal,” and “voluntarily excluded,”
as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and Coverage sections of the rules
implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the attached definitions. )

{6) The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal {contract) that should the proposed
covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered transaction with
a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily cxcludcd from pamc:pauon in this
covered transaction, unless authorized by NH DOE.

(7) The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the clause
titled “Certification Regarding Deberment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier
Covered Transactions,” provided by NHDOE, without modification, in at lower tier covered transactions
and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

(8) A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a lower tier
covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded from the covered
transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may decide the method and
frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its.principals. Each participant may, but is not required to,
check the Non-procurement List (of excluded parties).

(9) Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records in order
to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and information of a
participant is not required to exceed that which is normaily possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary
course of business dealings.

(10) Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a pamupam in a covered
transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person wha is suspended, debarred;
incligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition to other remedies
available to the federal government, NH DOE may terminate this transaction for cause or default.
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CERTIFICATION. REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER
. RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS - PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS, cont’d
Certiflcation Regarding Debarment, Suspension, and Other

Rapon:fbf!ily Matters - Primary Covered Transactions

0)) The prospective primary participant certifics to the best of its knowledge and belicf, that it and its
principals:

(a) are not pramlly debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or vo!untanly
excluded from covered transactions by any federal department or agency;

(b) have not within & three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had a
civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or for & criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing 8 public (federal, state or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes
or commission of embezziement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, -
making false statements, or rccemng stolen property;

. (e) are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civitly charged by a govemmental entity
(federal, state or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in pamgraph {1 (b) of
this certificetion; and

(d) have not within a three-year period preceding this apphcanon!proposal had one or more public
{federal, state or local) transactions terminated for ceuse or defaukt.

(2) Where the prospective primary participant is unable 10 certify to any of the statements in this certification,
such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions
{To Be Supplied to Lower Tier Participants)

By signing and submitting ﬂns lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier pamcnpnm. as defined in
45 CFR Part 76, cenifies to the bcs! of its knowledge and belief tlm it and its principals:

(&)  arenot presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or vo'lumarily
excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.

A where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such
prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will include this
clause entitled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and Voluntary Exclusion - Lower
Twer Covered Transactions,” without modification in all lower tier-covered transactions and in ali sohcmuons for

lower tier-covered transaction
?/f //\, 0\ Cﬁ'@
Rzprcscntanve Signature Contractor's Representative Title

i Loudty  Jo/20/an
te \_} : 14 [

P37 Exhibits D thru H
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT G

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE
AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT COMPLIANCE

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to
comply with all applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990,

fé( Ll ls

Contractor chuscnunve Slg,nature Contractor's Representative Title
G mmmrﬁ/ /Eﬁm farthership of Stra Bord. /A.mfﬂ [1f2> [22-
Date
P17 Exhibits D thru H
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
STANDARD EXHIBIT H

CERTIFICATION
Public Law 103-227, Part C~
ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

In accordance with Part C of Public Law 103-227, the “Pro-Children Act of 1994”, smoking may not be permitted
in any pomon of any indoor facility owned or regularly used for the provision of health, day care, education, or
library setvices to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by federal programs either directly or

. through state or Jocal govemnments. Federal programs include grants, cooperative agreements, loans and loan

_ guarantees, and contracts. The law does not apply to children’s services provided in private residences, facilities

- funded solely by Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions or facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol
treatment.

-

The above language must be included in any sub-awards that contain provisions for children’s services and that
all sub-grantees shall certify compliance accordingly. Failure to comply with the provisions of this law may result
in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to $1,000 perday. -

@//\ ‘ (&

Contmctor Representative Slgn Contractor's Representstive Title
Cm\m widy Pehim fartnership of Staffod /‘naxm (of20/aa
ContractorName Date
b
_ P37 Exhibits D thru H
SEAS 210INHOASS
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EXAMPLE ONLY Exhibit 1
APPROVAL TO OBLIGATE
FUEL ASSISTANCE PROGRAM
STATE ) ¢
First 9/30/2022 ADMIN, FA PROGRAM SEAS  ASSURANCE 18 TOTAL
[CONTRACTED BUDGET £38,220.00 §,646,370.00 $2,200.00 357,200.00 6,623,990.00
EXPECTED BUDGET 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
THIS APPROVAL TO OBLIGATE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,165,561.00
OTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE 0.00 1,165,551.00 0.00 0.00 1.165.651.00
NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE 538,220.00 4,480,819.00 82,200.00 357,200.00 5,458,439.00
BMCA i
Flrst $/30/2022 ADMIN. FA PROGRAM SEAS  ASSURANCE16 TOTAL
[CONTRACTED BUDGETY 93.683.00 1,00,686.00 12,505.00 £9,960,00 1,182,114.00 |
EXPECTED BUDGET ) 0.00
_PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
[THIS APPROVAL TO OBLIGATE_ 0.00 207,112.00 0.00 0.00 207,112.00 |
TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE 000 207,112.00 0.00 ~0.00 207,112.00
NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE " 95,663.00 796.474.00 12,805.00 69,060.00 975.002.00
SNHS _ _
Firat 9/30/2022 ADMIN.  FAPROGRAM . SEAS  ASSURANCE 16 TOTAL
[CONTRACTED BUDGET- 183,777.00 1,710,152.00 34,968.00 £4,220.00 2,001,117.00 |
EXPECTED BUDGET 0.00
PREVIQUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00° 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
18 TO OBLIGATE 0.00 354,578.00 0.00 0.00 . 334878.00 |
TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE 0.00 .354,578.00 0.00 0.60 354,578.00
NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBUGATE 163,777.00 1,363,574.00 34,968.00 84,220.00 1,646,539.00
8C8 .
First9/30/2022 ADMIN. FA PROGRAM SEAS  ASSURANCE 16 TOTAL
[CONTRACTED BUDGET 83,835.00 879,501.00 11,829.00 64,960.00 1,040,147.00 |
EXPECTED SUDGET - - < 0.00
PREVIOUSLY OBUGATED 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
[THIS APPROVAL TO OBLIGATE 0.00 181,504.00 0.00 0.00 181,504.00 |
TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE 0.00 181,504.00 0.00 0.00 181,504.00
NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE 83,835.00 807,997.00 11,821.00 64,960.00 £58,613.00
CAPSC - -
First 8/30/2022 ADMIN, FA PROGRAM SEAS ASSURANCE 18 TOTAL
[CONTRACTED BUDGET £4,676.00 573,503.00 7,003.00 85,110.00 690_382.00
EXPECTED BUDGET 0.00
PREVIQUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
S APPROVAL TO QBLIGATE 0.00 118,373.00 0.00 0.00 118,373.00 |
TOTAL AVAI LIGATE 0.00 118,373.00 0.00 0.00 118,373.00
NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE 84,676.00 455,220.00 7,003.00 §5,110.00 572,009.00
TCCA .

. First 8/30/2022 ADMIN. FA PROGRAM SEAS  ASSURANCE 16 TOTAL
CONTRA 140,269.00 1,471,838.00 16,503.00 $2,950.00 1,710,260.00 |
EXPECTED BUDGET . 0.00
PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED . 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

8 APPROVAL TO OBLIGATE 0.00 303,084.00 0.00 0.00 30 00
TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE 0.00 303,084.00 0.00 0.00 303,984.00
NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE | 140,269.00 1,167,554.00 15,503.00 82,950.00 1,408,276.00

P37 Ezhibit
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
STANDARD EXHIBIT J

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY
AND TRANSPARENCY ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requirés prime awardees of
individual federal grants eque! to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October |, 2010, to
report on data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more.

If the initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or
over §23,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements as of the date of the award.

In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporiing Sub-award and Executive Compensation Information),
the New Hampshire Department of Energy must report the following information for any sub-award or
contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:

1) Name of entity
2) Amount of award
*3) Funding agency
4} NAICS code for commctsl CFDA program number for grants
-5) Program source
6) Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7) Location of the entity
8) Principal place of performance
9) Unique identifier of the entity (UEI #)
10} Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:
a. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal govemment and those
- revenues are greater than $25M annually, and
b. Compensatlon information is not already available through rcponmg to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submn FFATA-requured data by the end of the month plus 30 days in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-
252, and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Sub-award and Executive Compensation Information), snd further
agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections I.11 and 1.12 of the General
Provisions, execute the following Certification: 2

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above b the New

'Hampshtrc Department of Energy and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal Fmancml
Accountability and Transparency Act.

(Ll Rebser bdrews Bk, Ceo

(Contractor Representative Sighetre) . (Authorized Ctm{mctor Representative Name & Title)

Cmman/m &ﬁn« {&dm:fm tf- Socttprd (4 buaky V)2 YN

7, .
Contractgr laiti E‘d’
© Date _/0fR
Page | of

SEAS CFDA#93.044




NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT J
FORM A

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provuslons, I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions arc true and accurate.

_ l. The Unique Enméldeuk E V\fJ) x\umberf"c;i éour em:ty is:

2. [n your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans,
grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000, 000 or mere in annual gross revenues
from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements?

___NO _ %YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here.

If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:
3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your business

or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 780(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of 19867

__No | X YES
If the answer to K3 above ls YES, stop here,
If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the follbwing:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows: :

Name: Amount: ___
Name: ‘ ' Ar'nour;t:_
Name: Amount: ____
Name: . Amount: _____
'!:la'me: Amount:

age
SEAS CFDAN91.044



State of New Hampshire
Department of State

. CERTIFICATE

1, Williem M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that COMMUNITY ACTION
PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFORD COUNTY ls « New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New

 Hampshire 6n May 25, 1965, [ further centify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of Stste's office have been
received and is in good standing as far es this office is concemed.

Business ID: 65583
Centificate Number: 00057482587

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

'1 hereto set my hand 8nd cause to be iffined
the Scal of the State 6f New Hampshire,
this 4th day of ‘Apri! AD. 2022,

Do

William M. Gardner
Secretary of State




L : CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

f, Afison Dorow ) ___, hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC. cannat be contract signatory)

1.1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of Community Action Partnership of Strafford County.
' [Corgoration/LLE Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/sharehoiders, duly calle¢ and
heid on October 18, 2022_, at which a quorum of the Directors/sharehoiders were present and voting.
(Date)

VOTED: That _Betsey Andrews Parker, CEO (may list more than one person)
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory;

is duty authoﬂied on beha!f of Community Action Partnership ot Strafford County to enter into contracts or
sgreements with the State. ,
{Nama of Corpanalion/ LLCY

- of New Hampshife and any of #s apencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instfuments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which .
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote. T '

3.1 hareby certify that said vote has not been amended of repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Cerlificate of Authority. | further certify that it is understood that the State ot
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
kmits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation In contracts with the State of New Hampshire,

sll such limitations are expressly stated herein. ]

Dated:_W120121
: Signature of Elected Officer
Name:Alison Dorow
Tide:Secretary

Rev. 03724/20



ordY . CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE - g —

THIS CERTIFICATE I8 (SSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION CONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF IKBURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER{S), AUTHORIED .
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HGLDER. ’

I TRPORTANY. | the Cortificats hoider s an ADDTTIONAL INSURED, the pokicy{iws) must have ADOITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
¥ SUBRDGATION |3 WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certaln policies may require an endorzsmant. A staterent on
w:mm.mmgmmmmwumamm«qq

T Tori Oavis
ccurmm.u. . (OTT) 562-8854 ] {088) 5T4-2443
$ Darymouth Drive . ﬁ:ﬂ’rmw@m
WTURERTS) AFFORDING COVERAGR w0

Auburm RH 02032 ocsuneh A: Hanover insutance Compenry 262
IERURED " MIVRER S ; Extlem Aliance 10724

Commundy Action Pertnership of Eywfiord County, DBA: Biafiord CAP | pequmpn ¢ ; Philadeiphis incemnity

877 Contral S, S 10 1l =

Dover Nt 03820 snunene
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 2230 Masier REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN [SSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ASCVE FOR THE POUCY PERICD
INDICATED. HOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THI
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANGE AFFORDED 8Y THE POUCIES DESCRIBED HERDN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICEES, LIMITE SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED 8Y PAID CLAIMS,

‘u“l TYPE OF INSURANCE ool | vy POLICY RIESER mm LIeTS
D] COMMERCIAL GERERAL LIS ITY excn ocomency s 1.000.000
| cramssnace @m mm_ 100,000
5 Abuse & Molestztion Liab §1MEon ] VED EXF pprry sra pervon] | 10,000
A 2HV ATI213S 070172022 | 01012023 | rugemuns wavwomy |y $:000.000
mmmam : QENERAL AQOREQATY 3 3.000.000
RN
wc PRODUCTS coumom oy | ¢ tnckuded
Professionsl Lisbility + 1,000,000
_ v s 1,000,000
z Y MITO BODLY ULRY Sw parson) | §
SOSOULED -
A [ %““ —ros . AWNVAL 38300 070172022 | OT01/2023 | sCORY MAMY (Per scoident |
,>_< AUTOS QoY -AUTDS oMLY i
T Macdical Payments s 5,000
URDRELLA UAD ; 4,000,000
] ocom gk pccumency 1
A ECTIS LA CLans st | UHVA102138 07012022 | QTOVZY [ aoqmegary 3 4.000.000
oen | €] agrpemon y O
WOAKEAS COMPENSATION
ANG EMPLOYERS LIASILITY N %1 2 o
LYl preid TV uia 0150001379405 07012022 | Q7012007 | EL EACHACODENT $ :
ey ' 0 ceepaon s pumoves 13 000000
T . E 1,000,000
OF CPERATIONS bulom EL egeasy-poviCYLmoT |4 .
i Par Occumince $),000,000
C| eru m‘mm PHSD1725130 07M172022 | 010172023 | Aggregate Limit 34,000,000
, ’ Employes Oishonesty $1,000,000
DESCIIPTION OF OPTRATIONS / LOCATIONS / VIDACLES (ACORD 41, Additinal Memaerts. Schuduls, iy b 4 ¥ reare epase B required)

Workars Comp JA State: NH

CERTIRCATE HOLOER : CANCELLATION

BHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBES POLICIES BR CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOQF. NOTICE WILL BT DELIVERED IN

State of NH; NH Dapt of Energy ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS

21 South Frult 5, 59 10

Concond NH 0a30 _ Tl t)}[

© 13885-2018 ACORD CORPORATION, Alrlamm
ACORD 25 (201403) mmmmmmnmmmamom
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To the Board of Directors of _
Community Action Partnership of Strafford County and Affiliate
Dover, New Hampshire

INDEPENDENT AUD[TORS' REPORT

;

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Community Action
Partnership of Strafford County (a New Hampshire nonprofit organization) and Affiliate, which
comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as of December 31, 2020 and 2019,
and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then
ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements |
Management Is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated

financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America; this Includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and falr presentation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or efror.

Auditors’ Responsibllity - . :

Our responsibility Is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on
our audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards genarally accepted
in the United States of America and the slandards applicable to financial audits contained in
Govemment Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audits to'obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to oblain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures In the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, .whether due to fraud or emor. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate In the clrcumstances. but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effeciiveness of the entity’s intemal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonablaness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the consolidated financlal statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.



-

Opiplon .

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairy, in all
material respects, the financial pesition of Community Action Partnership of Strafford County
and Affiliate as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, and the changes.in their net assets and thelr
cash flows for the years then ended in accardance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America.

e
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financia)
statements as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as
required by Title 2 U.S. Cods of Federal Regulations (CFR) Pan 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Princlples, and Audit Requiremants for Federal Awards, Is presented for
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the consolidated financial statements.

_Such information Is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial
statements. The Information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements and certain additiona! procedurss, including comparing
and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements
themselves, and other addiional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, In all
material respects, in relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

In accordanca wlth Govemment Auditfng Standards we have also Issued our report dated
November 4, 2021, on our consideration of Community Action Partnership of Strafford County’s
Internal control over financlal reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions
of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
complance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal controf over
financial reporting or on compliance. That report s an Integral part of an audil performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Community Action Partnership
of Strafford County’s Intemal control over financial reporting and compliance.

/‘M e ..dfndé’ A’; A:’,!g, 4'
Jre ':'-‘5 stene” (75 sexiedinr

November 4, 2021
Wolfeboro, New Hampshire
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. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL ‘POSITION
' . BER 31, 2020 9

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents ; '
Accounts recelvable
Contributions recelvable o>
inventory
Prepald expenses

Total current assets

NONCURRENT ASSETS *

Security deposits
Property, net of accumulated depraciation
Qther noncurrent assets

Total noncurrent essets
YOTAL ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Demand note payabte

Current portion of long term debt

Accounts payable :

Accrusd payroll and related taxes

Accrued compensated absences

Deferred revenue
Refundable advances

Paycheck Protection Program
Other cumrent liabilities )
Tota! current iabilitles

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Long term debt, less current portion shown above

Total Rabilities
NET ABSETS
Without donor restrictions
With donor resatrictions '
Total net assets - T
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
See Notes to Financial Shtam&nts

°3

o

2020 2019

$ 1,316,311 $ 1,068,744
2,268803 - 1,525,175
38,400 68,100
226,233 19,510
36,318 12,570
3886165 2,694,699

. 5,326 6,350
5.273.321 4,815,150

© 27,500 27,500
5,308,147 4,848.000

$ 9192312 § 7,542,699
$ 105377 $ 105432
18,343 .
1,497,685 455,276
. 88,682 193,430
131,108 84,272 -
107,606 .
473,291 491,025
87,500 & =
1,318 4,955
2,520,910 1,334,390
2,775,919 2,566,846
5,296,829 3,901,236
3,593,017 3,330,373
301,568 311,000
3,895,483 3,641,483

$ 9,102,312 $ 7.542.699




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

0 E D 020
Without Donor - With Donor
CHANGE [N NET ASSETS
REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT’ _
Grant revenus ' $ 11412231 $ < $11412,234
Fees for service 1,544,770 - 1,544,770
Rent revenue 15,255 - 15,255
Pubfic support 451,885 255,657 707,642
In-kind donations ' & 630,848 - 630,548
Interest 103 - 103
Fundraising - 64423 - 64,423
Gain on sale of equipment 2,000 - 2,000
Total revenues and support 14,121,715 255,857 14,377,372
NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM
RESTRICTIONS 265,181 {265,181) . -
" Tola! revenuas, support, and net
assets released from restrictions 14,386,896 (9,524) 14 377,372
EXPENSES '
Program sorvices
Child services 4,470,403 - 4,470,403
Community services 2,258,483 - 2,258,463
Energy assistance 2,063,659 - 2,063,659
Housing - 2,920,930 - 2,920,830
Weatherization " 1,347,740 - 1,347,740
Workforce development . 92113 - 92,113
Tote! program services 13,153,308 ; 13,153,308
Supporting activities 4 F
Management and general 894,695 A - 894 685
Fundralsing 75,349 - 75,349
Total expenses 14,123,352 . 14,123,352
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 263,544 (9.524) 264,020
NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 3,330,373 311,080 3,641,463

'NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

Soe Notes to Financial Statements
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T L

$ 3693917

$ 301,566

$ 3895483



STATEMENT.OF ACTIVITIES

'FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

With Donor

CHANGES IN UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT
Grant revenuo
Feas for service
Rent revenue
Public support
In-kind donations
Interest
Fundraising

Totat roevenues and support

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM
RESTRICTIONS -

Total revenues, supgorl. and nst
assets released from restrictions

EXPENSES
Program services
Child services
Community services
Energy assistance
Housing

Woeatherization -
Workforce development

Total program services
Supporting activities
Msanagement and general
Fundralsing

Total expenses

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS BEFORE NONCASH

CONTRIBUTION - .
NONCASH CONTRIBUTION
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

8eo Notes to Financlal Statements

Without Donor
Restrictions Restrictions Total
$ 8385228 § - $ 8385228 °
2,026,319 . 2,026,319
9,385 5 . 9,385
. 492,204 240,031 732,235
699,583 s 699,583
335 1 335
25,334 5 25334
11,638,388 240,031 11,878,419
585,065 {585,085) -
{
12,223,453 (345,034) 11,878,419
4,467,861 - - 4,467,961
1,084,934 % 1,084,934
2,382,868 : 2,382,868
310,583 g 310,583
1,894,803 . 1,894,803
134 487 . 134,487
' 10,275,636 - 10,275,636
834,730 g 834,730
93,752 . 83,752
11,204,118 - 11,204,118
1,019,335 (345,034) 674,301
1,003,996 . 1,003,996
2,023,331 (345,034) 1,678,297
1,307,042 656,124 1,963,166
$ 3330373 § 311090 § 3641463
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENBED DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Changoe in not assets _
Adjustment to reconcie change in net assets to
net cash provided by operaiing activities:
Depratiation
Donated property end equipment
Gain on the sale of equipment
{increase) docrease In assets:
Accounts recelvable
Contributions receivabls
Tox crodils receivable
nventory
Prepak] expensos
Security deposits
Increase (decroase) in labilities:
Accounts payeble
Accrued payroll end reiated taxes
Accrued compensatad absances
Defarred revenue
Refundable advances .
Paycheck Protaction Program
~ Other current Eabilitles

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

. Purcheses of property and equipment
Procaads on sale of equipment

NET CASH USED (N INVESTING ACTMTIES

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Borrowings of long-tarm debt
Payments made on long-term debt
Nst repayments on demand note payable

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATIO

Cash paid during the yesr for interest

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NONCASH INVESTING

- AND FINANCING ACTIMTIES
Donated property end equipment

Se0 Notes to Finencial Statoments

2020 il

$ 254020 § 1678287
182,800 175,101

. (1,003,996)

(2,0@) o)
(743.128) (419,051)
29.700 (4.300)

A 250,000

(206,723) (6.090)
(23,748) 45,696

24 )
1,042,409 48317
(104,748) 31,864
46,838 {9.812)
107,606 p
(17.734) 75.690
97.500 -

_ (2.63D (74,468)
659177 785.250
(640.974) (158,282)
2,000 .
(638.971) (158.292)
485,181 .
(257.765) (247.844)
{55) - {60,000)

227,361 (307,844)
247,567 19,114
1,088,744 748,630
$ 133t § 10687
$ 130185 § 160,999
$ - $ 1,003,996




NOTE 1.
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CONSOL{DATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E S ENDED DEC 3 9

. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Organization and Principles of Consolidation

Community Action Partnership of Strafford County (the Agency) is @ 501(cX3)
private New Hampshire non-profit organization established under the provisions
of the Equal Opportunity Act of 1964. Without services provided by the Agency,
many local residents would be without a means to provide for their basic needs,
including food, education, child care, ulilities assistance, transportation, housing,
emergency shelter and access o other services. The misslon of the Agency is to
educate, advocate and assist people in Strafford County to help meet their basic
needs and promote self-sufficiency. The vision of the Adency is to eliminate
poverty In Strafford County through compassion, education, self-sufficiency,
transparency, accountabllity, team work, client focus and professionalism.

Academy Street Family Housing, LLC (Academy Street) is a limited fabllity
company which Is consolidated because the Agency controls 100% of the voting
power of Academy Streel. Academy Street leases property from the Agency
under a lease agreement for an annual rent amount of $1. The lease
commenced on April 21, 2020 and expires April 2045. Unless either party serves
the other with a 180 day written notice prior 1o the explration of the Initia! term, at
the end of the initial term, the lease shall be sutomatically extended for an
additional 25 year term. All significant intercompany items and transactions have
been eliminated from the basic financial statements.

In addition to the Agency's administrative office located in Dover, the Agency
maintains its outreach capacity by operating program offices In Farmington,
Milton, Rochester, Dover and Somersworth. The Agency is funded by Federal,
state, county and local funds, as well as United Way grants, public utilities,

foundation and charitable grant funds, fees for service, private business.

donations, and donations from individuals. The Agency is governed by a tripartite
board of directors made up of elected officials, community leaders from for-profit
and non-profit organizations and residents who are low income. The board Is
rasponsible for assuring that the Agency continues to assess and respond to the
causes and conditions of poverly in its community, achiave anticipated family and
community outcomes, and remain administratively and fiscally sound. The
Agency administers a wide range of coordinated programs to more than 15,000
peopie annually, and the programs are designed to have a measurable impact on
poverty and health status among the most vulnerable residents: those under the
age of 6, the elderly and those living in poverty. This coordinated approach is
accomplished by providing a broad amay of services that are locally defined,
planned and managed with community agencies. _



NOTE 1.

CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
. FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019

ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Is of ,
The consolidated financial statements have bsen prepared using the accrual
basis of accounting in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Prlndples
(GAAP) of the United States

Financial Statement Pmsentation
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with

U.S. generally accepted accounting principlas (US GAAP), which require the
Agency to report Information regarding its financial position and activities

\

‘according to the following net asset classifications:

Net assets without donor restrictions: Net assets that are not subject to
donor-imposed restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in

performing the primary objectives of the Agency. These net assets may be
used at the discretion of the Agency’s management and board of
directors. '

Net assets with donor restrictions: Net assets subject to: stipulations
imposed by donors and grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary
in nature; those restrictions will be met by actions of the Agency or by
passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in nature, whereby
the donor has stiputated the funds be maintained in perpetuity.

Donor restricted contributions are reported as increases In net assets with
donor restrictions. When restriction explres, net assets are reclassified
from net assets with donor restrictions to net assets without donor
restrictions in the statement of activities.
At December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Agency had net assets without donor and .
with donor restrictions. :

af ble nces

Grants recelved in advance are recorded as refundable advances and

recognized as revenue in the period in which the related services are performed
or expenditures are incurred.

]



NOTE 1.

CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2018

QBQAMQN AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
continue

Co g
contribulions ere considered to be available for unrestricted use unless
rastricted by the donor. Amounts received that are restricted by the
donor for future periods or for speclfic purposes are reported as temporarily
restricted or permanently restricled support, depanding on the nature of the
restriction. However, if a restriction is furﬁlled in the same period in which the
contribution is received, the Agency reports the support as unrestrictad.

buted Services
nat services are recognized as contributions in acoordanoe with FASB ASC
No. 958, Accounting for Contributions Received and Contributions Made, if the
services (a) create or enhance non-financiel assets or (b) require spedahzed
skills and would otherwise be purchased by the Agency.

Volunteers provided various services throughout the year that are not recognized
as contrbutions In the financlal statements since the recognition criteria under
FASB ASC No. 958 were not met.

Falr Value of Financlal instruments
Unless otherwise Indicated, fair values of all reported assets and liabliittes that

_are finandial instruments approximate the carrying values of such amounts.

‘n!gln%
nve materials are fixtures for installation and recorded st cost or contributed
value, using the first-in, first-out method.

epreci
Property and equipment, which have a cost greater than $5, 000 are capitalized
at cost or, if donated, at the approximate fair value at the date of donation.
Specific grants and awards may have a threshold lower than this amount and
that program will abide by those guidelines. Assets are depreciated over their
estimated useful lives using the straightdine method as follows:

Bulldings and improvements 15 - 40 years
Fumiture, equipment and machinery 3-10 years
Vehicles 5- 7years

Depreciation expense aggregated $182,800 and $175,1C1 for the years ended
Decamber 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

11



NOTE 1.

AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
. E S ENODED DECEM 31, 2020 AND 20

ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGIHIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
{coptinued]) :

Accrued Earned Time

The Agency has accrued a liabllity of $131.108 and $84,272 at December 31,
2020 and 2019, respectively, for future compensaled leave time that its
employees have eamed and which is vested with the employee.

Income Taxes _ -

The Agency Is exempt from income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code. The Intema! Revenus Service has determined the Agency to be
other than a prdvate foundation. The Agency is also exempt from the New
Hampshire Business Enterprise Tax.

Accounting Standard Codffication No. 740, "Accounting for income Taxes”,

- establishes the minimum threshold for recognizing, and a system for measuring,

the benefits of tax retum positions in financial statements. Management has
analyzed the Agency's tax position taken on its information retums for the
previous three tax years and has concluded that no additional provision for
income taxes is necessary in the Agency's financiat statements. '

Cash and Cash Equivatents
The Agency considers all highly liquid financial instruments with original
maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Revenue Recoanition Policy

The Agency derives revenue from grants, fees for services, donations, public
support and fundraising. Revenues are recognized when control of these
services are transferred to customers, in an amount that reflects the
consideration the Agency expects to be entitted to in exchange for those
services. Cost Incurred to oblain a contract will be expensed as incurred when
the amortization period Is less.than a year.

U

The presentation of financial statements in conforiity with generally accepted
acocounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and fiabliities and disclosure of
contingent assets and llabllities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

12



NOTE 1.

COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAEFORD COUNTY
AND AFEILIATE

CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
0 E SE DD BER 31, 2020 AND 2019

ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

[ es ! )
The Agency expenses advertising costs as they are incurred. Total advertising
costs for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 amounted to $27,725
and $12,558, respectively. '

bt {ssuance
As required under FASB Accounting Standards Update No. 2015-03,
amortization expense for the years ‘ended December 31, 2020 and 2019
amounted to $2,156 and has been Included with interest expense in the
consolidated statement of activities for each year. The unamortized deferved
financing costs have been included as a reduction .of the long term debt (See
Note 9). .

In-kind Donations
T!Ee Agency pays below-market rent for the use of cerain faclities. In .
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, the difference

between amounts paid for the use of the facilities and the falr value of the rental
space has been recorded as an. inkind donation and as an In-kind expense in
the accompanying financial statements. The estimated fair value of the donation
was. determined to be $177,617 and $177,529 for the years ended December 31,
2020 and 2019, respectively.

The Agency also receives contributed professional services that are required to
be recorded in accordance with FASB ASC No. 958. The estimated falr value of
these sarvices was determined to be $17,812 and $33,857 for the years ended
December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

The Agency also receives contributed food commodities and other goods that are
required to be recorded in accordance with FASB ASC No. 858. The estimated
falr value of these food commodities and goods was determined to be $415,835
and $17.665, respectively, for the year ended December 31, 2020. For the
ended December 31, 2019, the estimated fair value of these food commodities
and goods was determined to be $397,292 and $91,175, respectively.

Functiopal Aliocation of Expenses '

The costs of providing the varous programs and other activies have been
summarized on 8 functional basis. Accordingly, costs have been allocated among
the program services and supporting activities benefited. Occupancy costs have
beengrwmdandaﬂocatedtomeprogtﬂmsasaﬂnehem.smwocaﬁonshave

'been determined by management on an equitable basls.

13



NOTE 1.

NOTE 2.

CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019

ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 'EOLICIES
{continued) .

Functional Allocation of Expenses (Continued)

The expenses that are allocated inciude the following: )
Expense Mathod of allocation
Salaries and benefits - Time and effort
Occupancy _Square footage/revenues
Depreciation Square foolage

All other expensds Approved indirect rate

New Accounting Pronouncement
In May 2014, FASB Issued ASU 2014-09 (Topic 606) — Revenue from Contracts

with Customers. The ASU and all subsequently issued clarifying ASUs replaced
the most existing revenue recognition guidance in U.S. GAAP. The ASU also
requires expanded disclosures relating to the nature, amount, liming, and
uncertainty of revenue from cash flows arising from contracts with customers.
The Agency adopted the new standard effective January 1, 2020, the first day of
the Agency'’s fiscal year using the modified retrospective approach. The adoption
did not result in a change to the accounting for any of the appficable revenue .
streams; as such, no cumulative effect adjustment was recorded. See revenue

recognition policy above.

PROPERTY -
As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, property consisted of the following:
- 2020 2019

Land, buildings and improvements $54989,660 $5,039,871
Furniture, equipment and machinery " 646,283 600,526
Vehicles : 350,136 327,137

Total £ 6,496,078 5,967,534
Less accumutatéd depreciation - 1,222,758 1,152,384

Net property ' £5.273321 $£4.815.120

14
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NOTE 3.

NOTE 4.

NOTE 5.

- ANR AFEILIATE
CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019

LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY

The foliowing represents the Agency's financial assets as of Dacember 31, 2020
and 2019: : '

2020 2019
Financlal assets at year end:
Cash and cash equivalents ‘$ 1,316,311.  § 1,068,744
Accounts receivable 2,268,803 1,525,775
Contributions recelvable 38,400 68,100
Total financial assets ; 3,623,614 2,662,619
Less amounts not available to be used |

within one year: - '

Board designated funds _ 307,315 307,315

Flnandal assets available to meet general
expenditures over the next twelve months $3316299  £2353304

The Agency’s goal is generally to maintain financial assets to meet 30 days of
operating éxpenses. As part of its liquidity plan, excess cash is invested in short-
term investments, including money market accounts.

CEIVABLE

Accounts recelvable are stated at the amount management expects to collect
from batances outstanding at year end. Balances that are still outstanding afier
management has used reasonable collection efforts are written off through a
charge to the valuation allowance and a credit to accounts recelvable. The
altowance for uncollectible accounts was estimated to be zero at December 31,
2020 and 2019. The Agency has no policy for charging interest on overdue
accounts.

CONTRIBUTIONS RECEIVABLE - . '
Contributions receivable represent promises to give, which have been made by

donors but have not yet been received by the Agency. The Agency considers

‘contributions receivable to ba fully collectible; accordingly, no allowance for
contributions recelvable has been recorded. _

- 15
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NOTE 5.

NOTE 6.

NOTE 7.

NOTE 8.

CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019

CONTRIBUTIONS RECEIVABLE (continued
Total unconditiona! promises to give were as follows at December 31, 2020 and
2019:
2020 2019

Within one year $ 34307. § 38,057
In two to five years . - 4,093 30,043

§ 38400 $__68100
T

The New Hampshire Community Development Finance Authority’s Tax Credit
Program allows New Hampshire businesses to contribute to not-for-profit
community, housing and sconomic development projects and receive a 75%

" New Hampshire state tax credit that can be applied against New Hampshire

business profits, business enterprise and insurance premium taxes. The Agency
did not recognize any revenue through this Tax Credit Program during the years
ended December 31, 2020 and 2019. The tota! cumulative contribution revenue
raised to date is $250,000 as of December 31, 2020,

ELEDGED ASSETS

As described in Note 8, all assels of the Agency are pledged as coﬂateml under
the Agency's demand note payable agreement. As described in Note 9, the
buliding of the Agency is pledged as collateral under the Agency’s morigage note
payable agreement.

PEMAND NOTE PAYABLE : :

The Agency has available a revolving line of credit with a bank in the amount of
$250,000. The nole is payable upon demand. Interest is stated at the prime rate
plus 1% which rasulted in an interest rate of 4.25% and 5.75% at December 31,
2020 and 2019, respedlvely The note is collateralized by all the assets of the

Agency.

16
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NOTE 9,

AND AFFILIATE .

CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o S ENDED D BER 31, 2020 AND 2019

LONG TERMDEBT .

‘The long term debt at December 31, 2020 and 2019 consisted of the following:

4,.90% mortgage payable to Kennebunk Savings
Bank with interest only payments for 36 months
followed by. principal and interest payments for
264 months for the first ten years. In 2028
principal end interest payments will adjust to
1.50% above the highest five-year Federal Home
Loan Bank of Boston interest rate. The morigage
note payable Is collateralized by the building and
leases and rents of 577 Central Ave. 2

5.00% morigage payable to the New Hampshire
Community Loan Fund of interest only payments
for 36 months followed by principatl and interest

- payments for 264 months. The mortgage note

payable Is collateralized by the building and leases
and rents of 577 Central Ave.

Non-interest bearing note payabie o the New
Hampshire Housing Finance Authority in annual
payments in the amount of 50% of annual surplus
cash through May 2060 at which time the

remaining balance is due. The note is

collateralized by certain real estate located at 22-
24 Academy Street.

Total long term debt before current portion of long
term debt and unamortized debt issuance costs

Current portion of long term debt

Unamortized debt Issuance costs

Total fong term debt

17
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2020 2018

$1,920978 $2,143,096

427,975 474,778

485,181 -

2,843,134 2,617,874
(18,343) o
—{48872) __ (51.028)

$2775919 $2.560,846



NOTE 9.

NOTE 10.

CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019
LONG TERM DEBY (continued)

The_sche'duie of maturities of long term debt at December 31, 2020 is as follows:

Year Ended
December 31 - ) mount
2021 . $ 18,343
2022 N ' 75,657
2023 : . 79,448
2024 83,430
2025 87,612
- Thereafter © 2490644
. Total $2.843,134
NET ASSETS
At December 31, 2020 and 2019, net assets with donor restrictions consisted of
the following: _ : o
2029 2018
Summer meals ' $ 44438 $ 11,914
Building campaign ; ¢ F 44,712 27,891
Security deposits .- 51,584
Whole family 25,846 163,738
COVID related 111,100 .
Homeless outreach - 5,091 -
Fuel assistance y 55,802 33,995
Weatherization 14477 3,434
Coordinated entry ! E 8,147
Hollday baskets . : - 3,985
Food pantry - - 2,521
Special events ' . _3.881
Total | . §.201566 § 311000
At December 31, 2020 énd 2019, net assets without donor restrictions consisted
of the fotlowing:
2020 2019
Undesignated $3,286602 $3,023,058
Board designated | 307315 307,318

Total net assets without donor restrictions $3.003917 $3.330.373
18



NOTE 11.

 NOTE 12.

NOTE 13.

-t PNy -

o
CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - :
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019

LEASE COMMITMENTS
Facllities occupied by the Agency for its community service programs are rented

under the terms of various leases. ' For the years ended December 31, 2020 and
2019, the annual leasefrent expense for the leased facllities was $143,308 and
$111,043, respeciively. Certain equipment Is leased by the Agency under the

_ terms of various leases.

The approximate future minimum lease payments on the above leases are as
follows:

Year Ended
. December 31 Amount

2021 ' $ 63001 -
2022 31,501
2023 1
2024 1
2025 - 1

T_hereaﬂer . 10
Total § 94515

RETIREMENT PLAN

The Agency malntains a 403(b) Plan and Trust (the Plan) covering substantially
all employees. Employee contributions to the Plan are made at predetermined
rates elected by employees. Additionally, the Agency provides 8 matching
contribution. equal to 25% of the employee’s contribution up to 5% of the
employee's compensation. Effective April 1, 2016, the Agency instituted an auto
enrollment feature mandating a minimum 1% employee contribution; however,
employees reserve the right to decline the auto enrollment. Employer matching
contributions for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 tota!ed $23,170

and $28,408, respectively.

ON OF RIS '
The Agency recelves a majority of its support  from federal and state
governments. For the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, approximately
80% and 88%, respectively, of the Agency’s total revenue was received from
federal and state govemments. [f a significant reduction in the level of support
were to occur, it would have a significant effect on the Agency’s programs and
activities.
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NOTE 14.

\

NOTE 15.

NOTE 16.

NOTE 17.

\

AND AEFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS .

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019

ONO EDIT RISK
The Agency maintains its- cash balances at several ﬁnandal institutions in New
Hampshire. The balances are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation up to $250,000. The Agency maintains an agreement with its
primary financial institution to collateralize the balancas in excess of $250,000. -

i

"CONTINGENCIES

The Agency receives grant funding from various sources. Under the terms of
these agreements, the Agency is required to use the funds within a certain period
and for purposes specified by the governing laws and regulations. If expenditures
were found not to have been made in compliance with the laws and regulations,
the Agency might be required to repay the funds. No provisions have been made

NONCASH CONTRIBUTION

Ouring the year ended December 31, 2019, .the Agency received land and
property as a contribution. The contribution was recorded at the fair value of the
land and property, totaling $1.003,896. Additionally, the Agency received
$130,000 from the contributor, resultlng in a tota! contribution of $1,133,896. -

RENTAL INCOME RECEIVABLE
Subsequent to December 31, 2020, Academy Street entered into four separate

rental agreements for use of their four apartments. The rental agreements
commence in May of 2021 and expire during April of 2022. Monthly payments for
the agreements range from $1,168 to $1,394 and are due the first day of each

month.

The approximate future rental payments owed on the above leases are as
follows:

- for this contingency because specific amounts, If any, have not been determined
. of assessed as of December 31, 2020 and 2019.

o/

Year Endéd .

December 31 Amount
2021 ' $ 42,800 o
2022 - 21,400 -'
Tota 884200



NOTE 18.

NOTE 19.

NOTE 20.

NOTE 21.

CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019

CHEC CTic OGRAM (PPP) LO
During the.year ended December 31, 2020 the Agency was able to secure a loan .
from the Payroll Protection Program (PPP) offered under the Coronavirus Ald,
Relief, and Economic Saecurity {CARES) Act. The Agency recelved foan proceeds
in the amount of $97,500.

Subsequent to year end, on July 1, 2021, the Agency received notification of
forgiveness of the Agency's PPP loan In full. The Agency classified the loan as a
current liability in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial positlon
as of December 31, 2020.

OTHER MATTERS
The impact of the novel coronavirus (COVID-19) and measures to prevent its

~ spread are affectlng the Agency’s business. The significance of the impact of

these disruptions, including the extent of their adverse Impact on the Agency’s
financial operational results, will be dictated by the length of time that such
disruptions conlinue and, in tum, will depend on the cumrently unknowable
duration of the COVID-18 pandemic and the impact of govemmental regulations
that might be imposed In response to the pandemic. COVID-19 alsc makes it
more chalienging for management to estimate future performance of the Agency,
particularty over the near to medium term,

E SSIFC S
Certaln reclassHications have been made to the prior year's financial statements,
which was taken from the December 31, 2019 financial statements, to conform to
the curmrent year presentation.

S

égmm to mﬂﬂnd the Agency acquired sall of the assets and liab{llties of
Dover Daycare ng Center (the Center). Totat assets and liabilities acquired
were approximately $369,000 and $264,000, respectively. Since the date of
acquisition, the A%n% has been running the operations of the Center. Prior to
Decambef 31, 20 e Agency received $107,606 from the Center relating to
the sale. This Is included In deferred revenue in the accompanying consclidated
statements of financia! position.
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AND AFFILIATE
CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
EOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019

NOTE'20. SUBSEQU EVENTS (continued
Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur afler the statement of .
financial position date, but before financial statements are available to be issued.
Recognized subsequent events are events or transactions that provide additional
evidence about conditions that existed at the statement of financial position date,
including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing financlal statements.
Nonrecognized subsequent events are events that provide evidence about
conditions that did not exist at the statement of financial poslition date but arose
after- that date. Management has .evaluated subsequent evenls through
November 4, 2021, the date the consolidated financial slatements were available
for Issuance.
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CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020
Academy
Stroet Family
" CAPSC Houslng, LLC  Consofidated
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS -
REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT '
Grani revénue $ 11412231 § -8 11,412,231
Fees for service 1,544,770 . 1,644,770
Rent revenue ' 15,255 . 15,255
Pubiic support 707.642 707,642
in-kind donations - 630,948 - - 630,948
Interest 83 10 - 103
Fundraising ' 64,423 ' s 64,423
Gain on sale of equipment 2,000. - 2,000
Total revenues and support 14,377,362 10 14,377,372
EXPENSES
Program services _
Child services 4,470,403 5 4,470,403
Community services 2,258,463 ; 2 2,258,463
Energy assistance : 2,063,659 . 2,083,659
Housing . 2,917,792 3,138 2,920,830
Weatherization 1,347,740 e 1,347,740
Workforce development 92,113 - 92113
Total program services 13,150,170 ' 3,138 13,153,308
Supporting activities
" Managemaent and genesal 894,695 - 894,695
Fundralsing 75,349 - 75,349
Total expensas : 14,120,214 3,138 14,123,352
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 257,148 ' (3.128) 254,020
NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 3,641,463 - 3,641,463
NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR $ 3808611 § (3,128) - § 3895483

Seo Notos to Financial Statements

24



RN o S

Tl and Aduk Cove Fand Prageeiy

u_h'
-n—-:—-v—bu&-
Mt Subeal Lustah Pengmen i

Pysd Cinaiouiion Chatns
*Hhh—'ﬂm

T LA, DopmBivit & Apfasfom

Suppaiey Wuibng Nir S Bty
CDBO Balinanst Qessts Chasr
Commudly Dottt Bliah Crusis 7 filmivpnl Oepediy
Comvgmpaliy Dovelngenad Sk Oupsn / Saiiim Cogly
2 L] Ornen

Bnrpipiety Sntatuns (e Pougrun
Cvimerpucy Seluben Guwt Pagen

Sumirthn Huusireg Peaguen
Supprin Hesly Fagas

u-un-uum’-.—m-u———

A Cheiter -
WD Al el
WG, Chuinamtud Yot Pasvani Gl

Tt U, Dapmtrmpt o Lahnef 04, Chusinr

Covnpins Ralel P
Camvpptvun Giuief Pand

Tont WL Deptvtmant & B Fasswry

Tomslk Suvinss P Clam
tiaherand Mubiy of Sesan & tnfiviiunis uils Clnabiien

Tatal U8, Depasnunat of Tstagbtuiin

Sl Deseri=ead of Mestth A s Sarris
Aging Chuier E
ﬂﬁ-—-h“ ‘-I.MI Oy &
Saiyr gy

. Bl Dottt
o Nyt i

7.
"

1

- Snate of Mo D o By -

S gt e st Oupmtwant of Edccation

Tiw of Mow of Edvuniin

‘Selivag-hievinh Cosvmpily Acion Paftrasbip

Owase Hguping Sty
Ty of Dapous, Vepe Mpopaty

Oy ot Faptlapgie, Mme Mampohde
Cliy of R, Hyw Mawpehie

Sn of New Masvgaeds. Duprtnst of VRIS dal skt Sahizes
Sinte of Mg HBPutEs Oipdiiomes of Mool mod Mumas Sendess

hdhmhﬁ-ﬂdmﬁ-m"
Coamusegrly Pytngrs / Betuional Mol f Sorvicas

SniPars Mo Hasgaive Seedar. nc
Soniivien Muw Hspahts Serdum, by

hdhm“ﬂ-dl—-ac‘;—qﬁ_

Guwsnrion™y Oy of Lompency fatel § Nusowwy
Qoveners Oes of Fepupuuty Fulat § Rubovery

s of M Chigute o

-—--u_.—.a—-t-q-m-u—
e of Mg of Moun Sarviam,
ah . 5

DR,
GINTOKE MATTR PIROMMEY
4 3 wny
Axo-I11 ] py- 1
dfnt At Schuend Cavn Comtvn BRI LOIM
) Mgy oLry
s
O Hunting Aatiusty ' popem
Cliy o O o
Chy of Raxtumey s
Coy of Aoy DEn - [}-5. ]
AP TR - -IDT T «
-08-0)-4TI0WN- T ne L -
AT TR0t ' ey
Covanarsly Pertetnn - E_ -
L maw
W03 ' S
sl —_—l
| - .|
. ] LT
A Winter Ealer 4 hF-RC
Hoveiy Suntinsten ot —ime ey
' l_am
Pt Outimepy P B | s1008
| I T
TI-S-TET- ST )01 [] a
O03-45-400 10 PITI0C00-4 1) SixRLT kg LI



M, Satnl, Sty Crlldned
Himepteing Pragrans
Peunsing Suls et Sy Fovaliuy

Tompayry Amiviess o Moty Ponliss
Tonguey Amishas for Masdy Fonlieos

Le-giny My By Asstes
Low-lnssms M Emegy Amilieees

Cowemmlly Bovvinss Bindk el
CAOosmmany Sardams Sk Ot

Minsst Sland Chaster
sl St
Cv bt st
— g Chily? Mngh Sarden Bk Qo & Sisins
et ot Junsy Chms walne Papam
Saubet Sasvigns Bosh Qugt
Vol UK Oupartannl of Musilh & Maran Bordnse
ol

CoAE T
+ame Eaargy Asininray Pugpees

Sou vt in fsbeduie of Expuaioras of Potend Amerds
»

HHE AR L

S of Vatur HpEp i Syemn Tuvines, L
OPHCY, Mtwnt § Heslh Section

Sts o Mow Pampeiis, OHITA. Divisien for Chlliion. Touth snd Pasling

Ouniy of Mo Mawgaetin, OFOC), Otvlsian tor Chliun, Yemh gugd Pymnilay
Seinpts Mty MmO Sisvitieh_ box.

Wk of Wawe Parguiie Goveners Ollen of Drarygy & Piaing
St of bt Phinsguiiniis Ohmetsings O of Buangy § Mamning

S of tiwe Mpaguiig, Dvesl, OFA

Shain of Mew Hompabin, DV, DF A

Dt Pty

et Pumfing

hils of Mins Masguidrs, ), Chainies far Chilkiogs, Yauth oo F o

Sinly of Sy Mamgeling, OHME, Chubdipn fr Chidiren. Toulh el Fassles
Tt of M FMompaiin., DHICE, Obvisine to Chilbus, Voum sl Pasdins

Evormmens Eaargy Sardes Compuny




NOTE 1. .

NOTE 2.

NOTE 3.

" NOTE 4.

NOTE S.

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

EOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

BASIS OF PRESENTATION
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of Federal Awards (the Schedule)

includes the federal award activity of Community Action Partnership of Strafford
County under programs of the federal government for the year ended December

31, 2020. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the

requiraments of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a
selected portion of the operations of Community Action Partnership of Strafford
County, It Is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes
in net assats, or cash flows of the Agency.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of
accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles
contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not
allowable or ere limited as to reimbursement.

INDIRECT COST RATE '

. Community Action Partnership of Strafford County has elected not to use the ten

percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

FOOD DONATION
Nonmonetary assistance is reported in the Schedule al the fair value of the -

commodities received and disbursed.

SUBRECIPIE -

Community Action Partnership of Strafford County had no subredpsents for the
year ended December 31, 2020.
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COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFORD COUNTY
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL

REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON
‘AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED

IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Baard of Directors of - ‘
Community Action Partnership of Strafford County i
. Dover, New Hampshire :

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted In the United
States of America and the-standards applicable to financial audits' contained in Government
Auwditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financlal
statements of Community Action Partnership of Strafford County (a New Hampshire nonprofit
orgahization), which comprise the statements of financial position as of December 31, 2020
and 2019, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash fiows, and
the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated
November 4, 2021, '

| Contr clal Re :
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Community
Action Partnership of Strafford County’s internal control over financial reporting (intemal control)
to determine the audit procedures thal are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing our opinlon on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an .
opinion on the effectiveness of Community Action Partnershlp of Strafford County’s intemal
control. Accordingly, we do not express an oplinion on the effectiveness of Community Action
Partnership of Strafford County’s intemal control.

A deficiency in Intemal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and comect, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness Is a
deficiency, of a combination of deficiencies, In internal contral, such thal there is a reasonable
possibiiity that & material misstatement of the entity’s financlal statements will not be prevented,
or detected and comrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency Is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, In intemal control that is lass severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with govermnance.

! 28



Our consideration of intemal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was ‘not designed to identify all deficiencies in intemal contro!
that might be material weaknesses -or significant deficlencies and therefore, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have not been identified, Given these
limitations, during our audit we did not Identify any deficlencies in internal. control that we
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not .
been identified.

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether-Community Action Partnership of
Strafford County’s financia! statements are free from material misstatement, we performed
_ tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant

agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express
such an opinfon. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Govemment Auditing Standards.

se of eport
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the resulls of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the organization's intemal control or on compfiance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed In accordance with Governmen! Audiling Standards in considering the
organization’s intemal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable
for any other purpose.

NM /”f'.n&'ndé 7 g A‘,sz
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November 4, 2021
" Wolfeboro, New Hampshire
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR
EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL

OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors of
Community Action Partnership of Strafford County
Dover, New Hampshire

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program .
We have audited Community Action Partnership of Strafford County’s compliance with the

typas of compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could

"~ have a direct and material effect on each of Community Action Partnership of Strafford

" County’s major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2020. Community Action
Partnership of Strafford County’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of
auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

eme esponsibil
Managernenl is responsible for compliance with federa! statutes, regulations, and the terms
and conditions of its federal awards applicable lo its federal programs.

Auditors’ Responsibllity , '
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Community Ad:on

Partnership of Strafford County’'s major federal programs based on our audit of the types of
compliance requirements referred to above. We conducled our audit of compliance in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the
standards applicable to financial audits contalned in Govermment Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptrofler General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S.
Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles,
and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the
Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable agsurance
about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above
that could have & direct and material effect on a major federal program cccurred. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Community Action Partnership of Strafford
County's compliance with thase requirements and performing such other procedures as. we
considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basls for our opinion on oompllanoe for each
major federa! program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of
Community Action Partnership of Strafford County’s oompllgnce.
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Opiniopn o a .I ofra

In our opinion, Commumty Action Partnership of Strafford County complled in il material
respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct
and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended December 31,
2020.

Report on Interpal Control Over Compliance ‘
Management..of Communily Action Partnership of Strafford County Is responsible for

establishing and maintaining effeclive Intemal control over compliance with the types of
- compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of
compliance, we considered Community Action Partnership of Strafford County’s internal
control over compliance with the types of requiraments that could have a direct and material
effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major
federal program and to test and report on intemal control over compliance in accordance with
{he Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
Internal control - over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of Community Action Parinership of Strafford County's intemal control over
oomphance

A deficiency in intemal control over compliance exists when the dasign or operatlon of a
control over compliance does not allow management or empioyees, in the normal course of
performing thelr assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and comect, noncompliance with a
type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A matenal weakness In
intemal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencles, in intemal
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility- that material
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be-
prevented, or detected and correcied, on a timely basis. A significant deficlency in Intemal
control over compliance Is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intemal control
over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that s less severe
than a material weakness in Intemal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with govermnance.

Our conslderation of interna! control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify afl deficiencies in intemal
control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficlencies. We did
. not Identify any deficlencies In Intema! control over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of intemal control over wmplmme and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other

purpose.

Nﬂﬂ(’ /”(.ii’fmé//‘ A,élt /
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Novembef 4, 2021 : _ -
Wolfeboro, New Hampshire
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COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFORD CQUNTY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

—

A. SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS

1.

The auditors’ report expresses an unmodified opinion on whether the financial
statements of Community Action Partnership of Strafford County were prepared In
accordance with GAAP.

No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the financial statements are reported in
the Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control Over Financlal Reporting and on
Compliance and other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Pe ed in
Accorr‘ggnce with Government Auditing Standards. - No material weaknesses are
reported. ' \

No instances of~noncomplian¢e material to the financial statements of Community
Action Partnership of Strafford County, which would be required to be reported in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards, were disclosed during the audit,

No significant deficiencies In internal control over major federal award Mpmgrams are
reported In the /ndependent Auditors' Report on Compliance for Each Mafor Program
and on Intemal Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance. No
material weaknesses are reported.

The auditors' report on compliance for the major federal award "programs for Community
Action Partnership of Strafford County expresses en unmodified opinion on all major
federal programs. .

Audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR section
200.516(a) are reported in this Schedule.

The programs tested as major were: U.S. Department of Health and Human Services,

. Low-tncome Home Enesrgg Asslstance Program, CFDA 93.568, Community Services

Block Grant, CFDA 93. and U.S. Department of the Treasury, Coronavirus Relief
Fund, CFDA 21.0198. :

The threshold used for distinguishing beliveen Type A and B programs was $750,000.

Community Action Partnership of Strafford County was determined to be a low-risk
auditee. ~

B. FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

None S

C. FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS
AUDIT o ' ‘

None

32



community

PARTNERSHIP

of Strafford County

ction .
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Community Actioo Partnership of Strafford Coanty

ey Pe |
Name Job Title Salary % Paid from | Amount Paid from
this Contract | this Contract
Lisa Garcia Fuel & Electric Manager 52,000.00
Karen Carroll Lead Intake 45,760.00
Heidi Clough Lead Certifier 55,307.20
Jamie Swan Director of Strategic 76,627.20

Initiatives
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Lisa Gacia o

R
Personal Qualities
Focused and results-oriented; able to identify goals, prioritize and resolve.
Prosctive and flexible in challenging and changing environments.
Proficient in MicrosoR Office (inchuding Word, Excel, Access, Power Point, and Outlook)
High energy and enthusiastic.
Self-motivated and confident in making independent decisions.
Highly dependable, and cthical,

Professional Accomplishments

Fuel and Electric Assistance Manager June 2022 - present
Community Action Partership of Strafford County ‘
Responsible for day the day-to-day operations and management of the Fuel and Electric Assistance Program,
inctuding planning, implementation, ronitaring, and reporting. Responsible for creating and maintaining
procedures to successfully process and ccmfy applications thmugh excellent customer service and spplication
process fimes. Ensure that we are servicing our community in an effective manner scheduling outreach
scuvitics to increase the visfbillty of our programs by going into the community to enroll clients, offer
increased appointment times in office and creating flyers for locations throughout communities in Strafford
County. Oversee staff including schedules, reviews, end development. Empower team to create trainings,

procedures, and documentation to get lo best practices and encourage an environment of teamwork and
accountability. Keep accurate records to ensure program monitoring guidelines are met. Creating relstionships
with CAPSC community, partners, and vendors to better serve our clients. Work with other depertments to
work towards a whole family approach. Participate in discussions pertaining to the Fuel and Electric Programs
and other programs that will be implemented in the future. Attend all trainings offered to continue leamning.

Billing Specialist . Dec 1021 - May 2022
Community Action anu:mp of Strafford County Non-profit
Work with fuel vendors to manage and pay invoices for enrolled clients through the fuel astistance program.
Masage ail documentation for Vendor agreements and W-9 documents for landlords. Manage all
documentaticn for invoices and psymoents to adhere to Stete monitoring requirements. Manage CAP fue!
veador mailbox to ensure all billing issued are resolved in a timely manner. Manage Gift of Warmth progrsm,
using multiple systems to complete payments. Send monthly unexpended reports to vendors to maximize
benefit usage. Send notification letters to clients, vendors, and landlords s clients are enrolled. Created
relationships with vendors, fuel team members, clients and others who work here at CAP to leamn what [ can to
succeed in my role. Learning and using EmpowOr as a too! for research, uploading documnents and retrieving
fuel inquiries for follow up. Created documentation of job processes to assist anyone if 1 am out of the office.
AmstmththeWuﬂmmhonmmmaNUmgupacuylammgmyothermmuhonpenodafnme
to competency and reliability.

L0 2RI -4

Independent Contractor/Sef Employed Feb 2019-Dec 2021
Personal Shopper — Instacart Nationa! Grocery Delivery Service
Using a mobile application to complete orders in & professional and timely manner, servicing customers with
knowledgeable and friendly engagement  Consistently mect deadlines and quality goals for aceuracy and
tirneliness based on metrics set within the app and input from customers. levmsmnmcomphnm with
professionalism.

lBodyTheupeuﬂcManm&Bodywork-ooowncr May 2020 - present
Smoall business owner managing all aspects of the business including customer service, marketing, product
" inventoty in studio end online, interviewing and hiring, payroll and working with clients to improve beaith,

Business Operations Coordinator October 2009 - May 2020



-

Cole Hean ) Global Lifestyle Brand
Responsible for daily orgenization of Business Openations/Allocations communications to suppart customer
service teams to include order allocation, master sccount data, pricing conditions and data analysis to fesolving’
issues. Back up for ell [nternational accounts to include managing the order backlog, making sure pricing is
cotrect and all customer requirements are met. Work closely with Intemational partners for weekly meetings
for training and working out concerns as needed.

Senlor Customer Service Specialist

Cole Han .-

_ Responsible for managing over 100 diverse wholesale accounts with multi-million-doliar revenue. Back up
for all of Cole Haan retail order management to include stores end online inventory. Work closely with sales
team and sccount buyers to manage all aspects of business from contract management o order processing.
pricing, allocation and delivery. Created business process documentation for multiple accounts. Proactively
streamlined processes to manage sccounts mére effectively. Worked with business operations leam to manage:
high volume of sales orders efficiently. Proficient in SAP, BW a3 well as sccount vendor sites (o manage
orders. Communicate with multiple internal departments - Demand Planning, Credit, Finance, Distribution and
Shipping to ensure the aceds of the accounts are met. Phooe cuc to service wholésale customer needs. Trained
new hires in all aspects of this position. Managed B2B website to include account sct ups and training for rest
of the team. Initiated, organized and led team meetings as well as newsletters for internal clients.

Professional Development Assistant - termporary staft February 2009 - October 2009
Measured Progress Nationally Recognized Standardized Testing Firm ]

Provide support of all activities in the Professional Development Department. Work with stalc, district and
school contracts: statement of client services, request for invoice, product orders, materials requests, and
meeting prepsrtion. Support of PD Specialists: create summaries from evaluations, materials preparation,
travel, rescarch and document review and edits. Co-created proposal for PD conference. Support Director of
PD: organization of financisl records, travel, scheduling, and systemic organization. Schedule, plan and
participate in ineetings for contracts, PD newslelter, awareness team and candidate interviews, preparing
background information, taking notes, contributing Lo discussion and following up on 1asks.

lavolved in compeany dodgeball and sofibail teams as well as the hiking club.

Research & Analysls Assistant - temporary staff November 2008 — February 2009

" Measarod Progress, Edit and format poshtest lechnical epons using Microsoft Word and Excel. Gather dai» from
multipledepumumdnwﬁpuhmnforplacmwmodocumu tables.

Quality Assurance Assistant - temporary staff October 2008 - November 2008

Measured Progress. Tested and reviewed on-line testing program for scademic standardized test. Reported on
errors in the téxt and troubleshot in the computer epplication. Updated tracking sheet the problems that aceded
to be addressed. ' '

' Eduocation

1996 Associste of Applied Science in Business, {with honors) " University of New Hampshire

" 1987 -~ 1989 Business course work Bismarck Community College, ND
~ 1987 High School Graduate Bismarek High School, ND

Military and Volaateer Service

Elected Selectmen, Dover, NH ' 2021 election
Election volunteer, Dover, NH . since 2020
United Way Day of Caring since 2009
US Armry Reserves 1992 - 2000

Home St School, Dover, NH ParentTeacher Organization Fundraiser Chair



Karen A. Carroll

EDUCATION:

MedPro Ed ucational Services, Dover NH
Nursing Assistant Training Program, June 2012

University of New Hampshire, Durham, NH
Undeclared, 1983-1984

EXPERIENCE:

Dl otk deadED . L

Comm unity Action Pmmrshtp of Strafford County. Dover, NH 2/2016 to Present
Intake Specialist for Fuel and Electrical Assistance
- Work directly with clients to process applications for Fuel & Electrical Assistance, Neighbor Helping

Neighbor, Security Deposit Program, and Special Needs Applications

Communicate with vendors via phone and email
- Track prior year's emergency households via Excel sprezdsheet and outreach to clients

Provide quarterly reports to management .

Assist with training of newly hired intake personnel

Maintain 8 list of local community resources within Strafford County and refer clients as appropriate

« 4 o 8 »

Community Action Partership of Straﬁ'ord County, Dover, NH 107201510 2/2016
Seasonal - Receptionist/Intake

*  Assist with the compilation and assembly of fuel assistance applications

= - Clerical duties such as filing, answering phones, and making appointments

* Process food pantry application and distribute food

Self-Employed, Dover, NH 2014 10 92015
Senior Care .

. Respunihte for the health and well- bemg of elderly family members

¢ Assist with ADLs

* Provide transportation services, medication administration, nutritious meals and hwsckeepmg services

Homemaker, Dover, NH ' 2002 10 102015
» Provide personal care to children
. * Provide illness care to children, includ ing monitoring health conditions, administering medication as
prescribed and reporting changes in symptoms
* Provide nutritious meals and housekeeping services for the household
¢ Mansage schedules and transportation for a family of six
* Provide emotional supp0li and intellectual stimulation to children
* Maintain financial records and create and implement household budget

Home Instead Senior Care, Portsmouth, NH 9/2012 10 7/2014
Caregiver

= Provide companionship services to elderly adults in their homes

*  Assist with ADLs %

* Provide trensportation services for clients

Self-Em ployed, Dover, NH ) 2009 to 2010; 201 ltoZOIZ
Childcare

* Responsible for the health and well-being of children aged three months to eighteen momha

. Provzde intellectual_stimuletion, meaningful playtime, meals and a safe environment



Self-Employed, Dover, NH
Residential Cleaning Service | _
« Clean end disinfect bathroom, kitchen, bedroom and living arcas

Edgewood Centre, Portsmouth, NH
Office Assistant-
+ Responsible for resident trust accounts
* Daily scanning of medical supplies
[ntegration of improved computer based inventory system
= Inventory of ali medical equipment and medlcal supplies
. Lnghl recepuomst duties )

VOLUNTEER EXPERIENCE:
Girl Scout Leader

COMPUTER SKILLS:
= Basic knowledge of Microsoft Word and internet navigationa! skills

+ Empower Customer Relationship Mamgemem System
=  FAP/EAP System

2008 to 2040

1998 to 2002

2000 to 2008



Summary of Qualifications A seif-motivated individua l with 4 strong work ethic, sttention to deteil, time ma nagement,
communica tion, interpersonal and organizations | skils. Experience working in & fast-paced office environment snd
possesses the ability to work colabontively with others as well as independently. Proficient in Microsoft Office,
Of'ﬁceJGS-(Miook,Onedee. SbarePoint, s ko famitis rwith Teamssnd Zoom. . v .

Professional Expeérience

June 2022 - Present Community Acilon Fartnership of Strafford County ~ Lead Certifier

Supervise Certification Staff within the Fuel and Electric Assistance Department

Certifies applications for accuracy and completencas .

Works with Lead Intake to Planand execute staff training

Works with Fuel Assistance Manger and Lead Intake to plan and execute process and procechmes |

November 2020~ hupe 2022 Community Action Partnership of Strafford. County - Fuel and Electric
Assistance Manger '

* Phn,and ¢oordinatés Community Action Pa nnership of Strafford County Fuel snd Electric Assistance
. progaams, incliding Fuel and Electric assistance; and other eclated programs.
*  Munage, fulltime and seasonal Quireach staff, providing direction and guidance on the content of work and
ovenseeing the quality snd scopeof programs. As well as the employee 's individua| performance. ]
*  Oversee policies rega rding participant involvement, program requirements s nd berefit determinations.
¢ Prepacing and submitring weekly Reimbursement request for the Fuel Assista nes
* Review monthly Fuel and Ekectric Assistance reports.

Tuly 2020- Nov 2020-Community Action Partnership of Strafford County- Fuel and Electric
Assistance Interim Manger

* Plan, direct and coordinates Comm unity Action Parnership of Stra fford Counly Fuel sad Eleciric
Astistance programs, octuding fuel and eketric &ssistance, food pantrics and other related programs.
- Maaugr, full time and teasona) Outreach gta ff,providing direction and guidance on e contegt of work
and ovenseeng the quality and scope of progams.
= Oversee policies rRrding participant involvement, program requirements and benefit
determinations, : )
* Preparing and submitting weekly and monthly reponts forthe.Fuel and Electric programts.

November 2003 -Juty 2020- Community Aétion Partnership of Strafford County- Outreach
Specialist/USDA Coordinator Dover, N} g i .

» Strives to provide effective, efficient, and compassonate customer service.

* Provides education and refem! for programs in and oulsite of CAP (Community Action Progmm).
» Finalizes accurate spplications, ensuring they are complete with supporting documents :

* Certifies clighility for verious prognms '

* Partners closely with fuel companies, fircwood vendors, and utilities companics.

= Abjlity to index and retricve dats on paperand/or electronically.

* Maintained security for private and confideatial information.

* Gathers inventory from USDA food paotries, kitchens, and bomeless shekter monthly.

* Executes a Quarterly report for USDA feview, ' :



« Conducted s monthly review of USDA 1 llocations to determine bimonthly food allotments ageacy.
« Coordinated agencics of pickup times and place for their bimonthly alloiments.
« Work within the FAP databasc inputting bills and printing checks.

« Began ssa receptionist and was promoted through positions of ncreasing responsibility
(Receptionist, latake Specislist, Billing. Cedtifier USDA coordinator. Outreach Specialist

Education: . )
s  Assochite degree in Business Science/Computer Applicatons (Mcintosh Coliege -Dover, NH)
e Cettificatcs: Motivational interviewing Basic, Safe Food Handlng. updated M5 Office applications,

Workphce Violence: Prevention, Safety_&SuwivaL Connecting through comm'unicalion Basics



Jamie Swan

Initiatives

Director of Strategic

OREECTIVE

Highly motivated, detail-odentatad, and sducsted professional possessing excetient communication,
organizatonal and enalytical capeblities, Passionate sboutall programs within the Communily Action Partnership
of Stratford County agency and have the skills o develop tha aystams and procedures bo ensure all agency
mandates snd standards sro mel.

EMPLOYMENT
5/158721-present
of Strafford County - 1022/20-173021
STT Central Ave. Sudte 10 intarim Director overseaing Childcare - CAPSC
Oover, NH 03820

2012-present . &
Health end Nutriion Manager - CAPSC

2008-2012
tnlegrated Teacher - Hend Start - CAPSC

2006-2007
Teacher * Head Starl - CAPSC

implementad the Al Risk After School meals program with Strafford
County. Daveloped and maintainad budgel, hiring, menus, ardering,
mantioring, ekc. During thie first year and avarage of 2,500 meais ware
served within two schools.

Oversees CAPSCs Summer Food Service Program . Developed snd
maintalned budgat wilt collaborating with community resources to bring
meals o children with snfford County.

Oversee the Health and Nuﬁuon mandates of gpproximately 300 children.

Write, ravise, and review palicies and procedures, program opersting plan,
parent handbook, eic.

Writs and compiete all grants and applications pertaining to health and
nutrition. .

Emergency meal service during Covid 18 pandemic. Coordinated with five
toca! school districts to provide meal service within 3 days of schoo!
emargency cosure, Served aver 285,000 meats to children within Stralfond
County from March o August



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE 26

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
DIVISION OF LONG TERM SUPPORTS AND SERVICES
'BUREAU OF ELDERLY AND ADULT SERVICES

103 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 833¢4
60)-171-9103  1-830-852-3348 Ext. 0200  Faz: 60)-271-4843
Laog Term Care Medizel ENgibllity Determination Unjt  603-271-9083  Faa: 603-271-7988
TOD Accers: 1.500-715-1964 www . dhbsab.gov

February 15, 2022

His Excellency, Govemar Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
State House
Concord, New Hampshire 03301
£ TED

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Long Term Supports
and Services, to enter Into 8 memorandum of understanding with the New Hampshire
.Department of Energy (Vendor # 359894-B001), Concord, New Hampshire, in the amount of
$82,200 for Senior Energy Assistance Services, with the option to renew for up to six (6)
- additlonal years, effective October 1, 2022, or upon Govemor and Counci! approval, whichever
Is later, through September 30, 2024. 50% Federal Funds. 50% General Funds.

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Year 2023, and are
anticipated to be avallabie In State Fiscal Years 2024 and 2025, upcn the avallability and
continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust
budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years
through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-05-48-481010-7872 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS: ELDERLY AND ADULT SERVICES, GRANTS TO LOCALS, ADM ON AGING
GRANTS

tat Class / . :
Flscatl A Claas Title Job Number | Total Amount
ccount ,
Yoar :
‘Transfer to Other | $30,825
2023 | 049-5849852 State Agency 48130306 »
, Transfer to Other $41,100
2024 040-584052 State Agency 48130308
' : Transfer to Other $10,275
2025 0498-5840852 State Agency 48130308
' Total $82,200

The &paﬂm q"Hccllh and Human Services’ Huuon is to jein communities and famum
in providing epporiunities for cilirens o n:huuc heaith and independence.



i

oo EXP TION

The purpose of this request Is to enter into a Memorandum of Understanding with the

New Hampshire Department of Energy (DOE) to provide energy assistance In the form of fus!

oil, electricity, gas or wood to New Hampshire residents over sixty (60) years of age. The DOE

is the designated administrator for the statewide Fue! Assistance Program and has the capacity

. and expertise to serve the Department’'s Bureau of Elderly and Adult Services’ population of
eligible older aduits. :

Approximately 152 households will be served amua!ly from October 1, 2022 to
September 30, 2024.

The Senlor Energy Assistance Program (SEAS) provides energy assistance funds for
individuats, 60 years of age or older, who are over income under the low-income Home Enasgy
Assistance Program (LIHEAP). The goal is to allow individuals to be able to stay in thelr home., -
This assistance will be provided by the DOE to provide support throughout the State. Senior
Energy Assistance Services (SEAS) assists in the prevention of an energy emargency that is
definsd as conditions that pose serious threat to the health and safety of individuals from the
lack of adequate home energy.

The DOE's performance will be measured by their ability to provide energy assistance to
senior households in accordance with the terms of the Memorandum of Understanding as
evidenced by monthly invoices and reports submitted to.the Department. in addition, by May
15th of each State Fiscal Year, the DOE will report to the Department the outcome of client
feedback about the quality of services provided by the DOE.

As referenced In Section 2, Term, Subsection 2.2. of the attached agreement, the parties
have the option to-extend the agreement for up to six (6) additional years, contingent upon
satisfactory delivery of services, available fundmg agreement of the parties, and Govemor and
Council approval.

Shouid the Govemor and Council not authorize this request, the assistance provided to
these senior househokls may be reduced to a lavel that could jeopardize their ability to remain
in thelr homes. These energy assistance services allow the elderly lo maintain maximum
independence, health and quality of fife, which supports the Department’s misslon for individuats
aged sixty (60) and over to remain In the community.

Area served: Statewide.
Source of Federal Funds: Asslstanoé Listing Number #93.044, FAIN #2101NHOASS.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will-not
be requested to support this program. :
' Respectfully submitted,

Lori A. Shibinstte
Commissloner

The Dapartmeni of Health and Humaon Seroices’ Mitsion s to joir communities and familier
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve heaith and independence, g
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MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN
THE STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES .

AND

New Hampshire Department of Energy

1. GENERAL PROVISIONS

1.1.  This Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) is between the New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services. Division of Long Term Supports and
Services, Bureau of Elderly and Adult Services (DHHS)., 129 Pleasant Streel,
Concord, NH 03301 and the New Hampshire Department of Energy (DOE), 21 South
Fruit Street, Suite, 10, Concord, NH 03301 (referred to as the “Parties”).

1.2.  The purpose of this MOU is to se! forth the roles and responsibilities of the Parties.

The DHHS will provide statewide energy assistance through the Senior Energy

" Assistance Services (SEAS) as part of the slatewide Fuel Assistance Program (FAP)
administered by the DOE; and '

1.2.1. The DOE is responsible for the disbursement of the DHHS energy
assistance funds by contracling with the five (5) Community Action
Agencigs (CAAs) to carry out the duties of the FAP in New Hampshire
which are Community Action Program of Belknap-Merrimack Counties,
Inc.; Southern New Hampshire Services inc.; Southwestern Community
Services, Inc.; Communily Action Partnership of Strafford County; and
Tri-County Community Aclion Program, Inc.; and

1.2.2. The goa! of this service is to ensure New Hampshire residents, age sixty
{60) and older, are able lo remain in their homes and communities and
to ensure that lhe services thay receive assist them in remaining
independent; and

1.3.  In connection with the performance of this MOU, the Parties agree to comply with ali
applicable laws and regulations. .

2. TERM

21. Effective Date: This MOU is effective October 1. 2022 or upon Governor and
: Executive Council approval, whichever is later, :

22, Dyralion: The duration of this MOU is from the Effective Date through September 30,
2024. The Parties may extend the MOU for up la six {6) years upon satisfactory
delivery of services, available-funding, agrcement of the parties, and approval of the
Govornor and Executive Council.

23. Modification: The Parties may modify this MOU by mutual written agre/emont at any
time, subject to appropriate Slate approval.

2.4. Termination: Ether parly may, al its sole discretion, terminate this MOU for any
reason, in whole or in pant, by providing thiny (30) days writlen notice to the other
party. In the evant of an early termination of this MOU for any othor reason than the
complation of services, the DOE shalt deliver to DHHS, not laler than thirty (30) days
after the termination, a “Termination Report® describing in detail all activities performed
and the MOU funds used up lo and including the date of {ermination.

(£
MOU-1.0

HOVY-2023-DLTSS-01-ENERG Page 1618
: 2/24/2022
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Memorandum of Understanding Between DHHS and The New Hampshire Department of
Energy -

2.5.  Inthe event the services and/or prescribed oulcomes described within this MOU are
not met to the satisfaction of DHHS, DHHS reserves the right to immediately terminate
this Agreamont upon written notice. -

a4

J. RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY {DOE) |
3.1.  The New Hampshire DOE agrees to: ~ '

3.1.1. Provide energy assislance 1o eligible households. Require all individuals ages
sixty (60) and older applying for energy assistance to complete FAP
application. Ensure those households with members age sixty (60) and older

. who are ineligible for benefits under regular FAP program guidelines are notified
by their CAA that they may be eligible for SEAS benefits. The DOE shall
determine eligibility for energy assistance as specified in The Older Amaricans

Act of 18685, as amendod and through the FAP application process as set forth

in the Fuel Assistance Procedures Manual, in coordination with the CAAs.

3.1.2.  Monitor all applications and paymehl procedures of the CAAs. The DOE shall
ensure the CAAs maintain records for oach individual recipient and maintain
financial records. o

3.2. Rules and Policigs:

3.21.  The DOE shall provide services according to the rules and policies of DOE's
Senior Energy Assistance Services (SEAS) as par of the slatewide Fuel
Assistance Program (FAP) and DHHS which are incorporaled by reference into
this MOU. and as specified in the State Plan on Aging and the Older Americans
Act of 1965 as amended, and in cffect al any tima during the MOU period as they -
may be:atopted or amended. : ’

kB ) Repoding and Quality Assuran;e‘: .

3.3.1.  The DOE shall collect and report the following de-identified aggregate data to
DHHS on a monthly basis:

3.3.1.1.  Number of clients served by lown;
3.3.1.2.  Number of units of service delivered lo clients:
3.3.1.3.  Monthly program amoun by direct and indirect costs; and
3.3.1.4.  Other data related 10 service provision as requested by DHHS,
332 The DOE shall report the data on a slandard lemplate pravided by DHHS.

3.3.3. The DOE shall submit completed data reporis to BEAS, Finance and Business -
Operations, 129 Pleasant Streel, Concord, New Hampshire 03301-0387.

334, The DOE agrees lo obtain client feedback as to the quality of services provided
by the CAAs und report the outcome to BEAS by May 15™ of each year of the
MOU and to participate in any future Quality Assurance Measures adopted by
BEAS.

335, The DOE shall forward the information collected from the CAAs pertaining lo
DHHS Exhibit J Certification regarding the Federal Funding Accountability and
Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance lo BEAS.

3.4. Performance Measure:
! De
MOU-2023-DLTSS-01-ENERG Pag0 7 0!G MOU-1.0 l ¥

1/24/2022
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Memorandum of Understanding Between DHHS and The New Hampshire Department of

Energy

3.5.

3.6.

3.7

3.8.

To ensure the provision of SEAS home energy services, to assist in the preventidn of
an enargy emergency that is defined as a condition(s) thal poses serious threat to the
health and safety of individuals from the lack of adequate home energy fuel, the DOE
shall ensure the CAAs follow up with the client sfier delivery of service to confirm the
energy emergency was prevenled.

Consumer Appeal Process:

The DOE shall maintain an appeal and administrative fair hearing process as set forth
in DOE's Fuel Assistance Procedures Manual, for individuals who have been denied
FAP services or question the FAP benefils provided.

Criminat Background and BEAS State Registry Checks:

The DOE shall require the CAAs to conduct criminal background checks for all
employees, applicants for employment, voluntcers and applicants for volunteer
positions If those positions could possibly have client contact in.the client's place of
residenco.

The DOE shall require the CAAs to comply with RSA 161-F: 49 Registry, VII, which
requires the submission of the namé of a prospeclive employee who may have client
contacl, for review against the BEAS Stale Registry, eftective July 1, 2007.

The DOE shali require the CAAs 1o submil a detailed descriplion of the language
assistance services they will provide 10 persons with Limited Engiish Proficiency to
ensure meaningful access to their programs and/or services, within ten (10) days of
the effective date of the coniract agreemaent belwean DOE and the CAA.

4. RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

4.1.

The DHHS agrees to:

4.1.1. Subject to the DOE's compliance with the terms and conditions of this MOU,

reimburse the DOE at the rate and for up to the units of services provided to
oligible individuals as follows in Table A: Service Rates and Units,

- Table A: Services Rates é;\d Units
Rate Per| Number of Units
Service State Fiscal Year Unit | (Households)
- 2023 (July 1, 202210 .

Energy Assistance June 30, 2023} $270.38 114,

2024 (July 1, 2023 to
Energy Assistance June 30, 2024) $270.38 152

2025 (July 1,2024 1o
Energy Assislance September 30, 2025) $270.38 | a8

5. PAYMENT TERMS

MOU-202)-01LTSS-01-ENFRG Page ol § MOU-1.0

2/24/2022
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Memorandum of Understanding Between DMHS and The New Hampshire Departmeant of

Energy

5.1.

5.2,

Tha maximum amount of funds available for reimbursement under this MOU from

DHHS to the DOE shall not exceed $30,825 in Slate Fiscal Year 2023, $41.100 in

State Fiscal Year 2024, and $10,275 in Slate Fiscal Year 2025.

The DOE shall submit an invoice and supporting documents to DHHS no {ater than

the fifteenth (15th) working day of the following month. The DOE shall:

9.2.1.  Ensure the invoice is on DOE's letterhead.
5.2.2.  Ensure the invoice identifies lhe dates that services were provided, aclual units

5.3.

54.

5.5.

5.6.

5.7.

5.8.

provided and tolal dollar amount for aliowable costs incurred in the previous
month,

In lieu of hard coples, all invoices with supporting dommerilalidn may be assigned an
electronic signature and emaited to BEASInvoices@dhhs.nh.gov, or invoices may be
mailed to:

- Financial Manager
Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301

- ’

DHHS shall make paymenit lo the DOE within thirly (30} days of receipt of each invoice.

and supporling documentation for authorized expenses, subsequent to approval of the
submitted Invoice. : : -

The final invoice and supporting documentation for authorized expenses shall be due
to DHHS no later than forty (40) days afler the MOU completion date.

Funding for this service is provided by the Administration for Community Living Title
B Supportive Services. Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance # CFDA 93.044,
Federal Award identification Number (FAIN} 2101NHOASS (Federal Funds) and State
General Funds, Account 05-095-48-481 010-78720000-049-584902 {General Funds).

Notwithstanding any provision of this MOU to the contrary, all obligations of DHHS
hereunder, including without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and conlinued appropriation of funds. DHHS shall not
be required to transfer funds from any olher source in the event that funds from Federal
and General Funds are reduced or become unavailable.

The Parlies may agree lo changes limited lo adjusting amounls within the price
limitation and adjusting encumbrances between State Fiscal Years and budget class

lines through the Budget Office inay be made by written agreement of both parties,.

without oblaining approval of the Govarnor and Executive Council, if needed and
justifiod.

6. ITIS FURTHER UNDERSTOOD AND AGREED BETWEEN THE PARTIES

6.1. Disputes arising undef this MOU that cannol be resoived between the agencies shall
be referred to the New Hampshiro Depariment of Justice for review and resolution,
6.2. This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with tho laws of the Slate of New
Hampshire. : .
6.3. The parties hereto do not-intend to benefit any third parlies and this MOU shall not be
construod o confer any such benefit. E '
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6.4. Inthe aven! any of lha provisions of lhls MOU are held to be contrary to any state or
federal law, the remaining provisions of this MOU will remain in full force and effect.

6.5. This MOU, which may be execuled in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, conslitutes the entire MOU and understandings between the
parties, and supersedes all prior MOU and understandings relating hereto,

6.6. Nothing herein shall be consirued as a waiver of sovereign immunity, such immunity
teing hereby specifically preserved.

l 1] ]
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APPROVALS:
Doculigned by.
[ (hridine Sendomniclls " PR
Christine Santaniello Date

Associale Commissioner
NH Department of Health and Human Services

W (,Lu.onm 2/24/2022

Jared Chicoine _ Dale
Commissioner :
NH Department of Energy

The preceding Memorandum of Understanding, having been reviewed by thnc. office, is
approved as (o form, substance, and execution:

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Dosullipned by: - ' .
' [3"7"‘1" Q‘“"‘_‘“’ 2/24/2022

TARTAB4493 1 184
Name: Robyn Guarino Date
Tille: atrorney

The foregoing Memorandum of Understanding was approved by the following authority of the
State of New Hampshire:

Namae: Date
Title:
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